
 
 

REGULAR MEETING STARTS AT 6:00 PM 
Mayor Stacy Rhoades 

Vice Mayor Jack Mitchell 
Councilmember Dominic Atlan 
Councilmember Alison LaFayne 
Councilmember Diane Wratten 

 
AT 1 E. MAIN STREET, IONE, CA 95640 

AND VIA ZOOM 
The City of Ione is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/2351961316?pwd=d3lWTW0zbVJLblpQNXBDQWtpZkRyUT09 

Meeting ID: 235 196 1316 
Passcode: 95640 

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aex3ZLbqgp 
Tuesday, July 18, 2023 

 
THE CITY OF IONE IS A GENERAL LAW CITY DEDICATED TO PROVIDING LEADERSHIP, 

ACCOUNTABILITY, AND FISCAL INTEGRITY WHILE PROMOTING ECONOMIC 
OPPORTUNITIES AND MAINTAINING A HIGH QUALITY OF LIFE FOR OUR CITIZENS. 

 
 

PLEASE LIMIT PUBLIC COMMENT/TESTIMONY TO FOUR MINUTES 
Gov’t. Code §54954.3  

The Ione City Council welcomes, appreciates, and encourages participation in the City Council 
Meeting.  The City Council reserves the right to reasonably limit the total time for public comment 
on any particular noticed agenda item as it may deem necessary.   
 
Full staff reports and associated documents are available for public review at the Office of the City 
Clerk, City Hall, 1 E. Main Street, Ione, CA.  Hard copies may be obtained for $3.60 for pages 1-
5 and $.45 for each additional page.  Documents that are not available when the agenda is posted 
will be made available for public review at the meeting. 
 

A. ROLL CALL 

B. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

If all matters are not completed prior to the regular meeting start time, the City Council 
will convene to Closed Session after the Regular Meeting ends. 
 

https://zoom.us/j/2351961316?pwd=d3lWTW0zbVJLblpQNXBDQWtpZkRyUT09
https://zoom.us/u/aex3ZLbqgp


 
 

6:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

B. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

D. PRESENTATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: None  

E. PUBLIC COMMENT: EACH SPEAKER IS LIMITED TO 4 MINUTES 

NOTE:  This is the time for members of the public who wish to be heard on matters that do not 
appear on the Agenda.  Persons may address the City Council at this time on any subject within 
the jurisdiction of the Ione City Council.   
 
Please be mindful of the 4 minute time limit per person. Pursuant to the Brown Act, the City 
Council may not take action or engage in a detailed discussion on an item that does not appear 
on the Agenda. However, matters that require Council action will be referred to staff for a 
report and/or recommendation for possible action at a future Council meeting.  Is there anyone 
in the audience who wishes to address the Council at this time? 
 
F. INFORMATION ITEMS:  

All matters listed under this category are for information only with no action to be taken 
by the City Council.   
 

1. June 2023 Fire Department Report. 
2. June 2023 Police Department Report. 
3. June 2023 Administrative Report. 
4. June 2023 Public Works Report. 
5. June 2023 Building Department Report.  

 
G. CONSENT CALENDAR:  

All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine and will be enacted by 
one motion.  Any item may be removed for discussion and possible action and made a part 
of the regular agenda at the request of a Councilmember(s). 
 

1. July 18, 2023 Warrants* 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the council review and approve the 
attached report for payment totaling $357,299.59 
 



 
 

2. Minutes of June 6th, 2023 and June 20th, 2023*  
Recommendation: By motion, approve the minutes from June 6th, 2023 City 
Council Meeting and June 20th, 2023 City Council Meeting  
 

3. Appointment to Planning Commission* 
Recommendation: By motion, confirm Mayor Rhoades recommendation to 
appoint Karen Huss to the Planning Commission. Appointment will expire 
October, 2024. 

 
H. PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. None.  

I. REGULAR AGENDA: 
1. 2019-2020 Audit 

Recommendation:  Accept the 2019-2020 Audit. 
 

2. Response to 2022-2023 Grand Jury Report 
Recommendation: Review the Grand Jury Findings and response letter and 
authorize the Mayor to sign and submit the response to the Grand Jury. 

 
3. Response to Notice of Preparation for ACUSD 

Recommendation: Review Draft letter and authorize the Mayor to sign and 
submit the response to ACUSD.  

 
 

J. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY MANAGER 

K. COUNCIL COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

L. RESUME TO CLOSED SESSION IF NECESSARY 

M. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

N. ADJOURNMENT TO REGULAR MEETING ON AUGUST 1, 2023 

Upcoming Meetings:     

July 20th:   Technical Advisory Committee Meeting (TAC) 9:00 A.M.  

July 25th:   Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting CANCELLED 



 
 
August 1st:   City Council Meeting    6:00 P.M.  

August 8th:   Planning Commission Meeting   6:00 P.M.  

August 15th:   City Council Meeting    CANCELLED  

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS 
Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, including without limitation, California 
Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public Resources Code Section 21177, if you 
wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding planning, zoning and/or 
environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else 
raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City at, or prior to, this public hearing. 

 
 
 
 

ADA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact City Clerk Janice Traverso at (209) 274-2412, ext. 102.   
Notification 24 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements 
to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 
 





Agenda Item       # 
 
DATE: July 18, 2023 
 
TO: Mayor Rhoades and City Council 
 
FROM: John Alfred, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:  Receive and File Police Department 2023 June Report 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

1. Receive and file Ione Police Department 2023 June Report. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
This monthly report is for the month of June 2023. This report is designed to give you an 
understanding of the day-to-day operations of the Ione Police Department and staff for 
June of 2023. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Summary – 2023 June Report 

 

 

 



IONE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

JUNE REPORT 
Data is from June 1st to June 30th   



CITY OF IONE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

2022 
June Report to City Council 

Data is from May 1st to May 30th  
 

1. Calls for Service 
2022 – June 130 
2023 – June 130 

 
2. Patrol Statistics 

Type of Call 2022 – June 2023 – June 
 

Officer Initiated 
Incidents 

422 363 

Traffic Stops 186 127 
Other OIA Incidents 236 236 
Business Checks 146 170 
Vehicle/Person Checks 24 14 

 
Type of Report 2022 – June 2023 – June 

 
Total Reports 43 35 
Accident Reports 1 1 
Corner’s Case 1 0 
Felony 8 9 
Information Report 19 15 
Infraction 4 0 
Misdemeanor 9 10 
Unclassified 0 0 

 
Arrests 2022 – June 2023 – June 
Total Arrests 8 10 
Misdemeanor 6 6 
Felony 2 4 

 



Citations 2022 – June 2023 – June 
Total 11 15 
Felony 0 1 
Misdemeanor 2 2 
Infraction 9 12 

 
3. Staffing Levels 

 1 Chief 
 1 Sergeant 
 2 Corporals 
 4 Officers 
 1 Reserve 
 1 Part-time Administrative Analyst 

 
• As of the date of this report, we are at full staffing levels for full-time 

employees.  We currently have one reserve position open and are 
starting the recruiting process to fill the position. 

 
• We currently run 12-hour shifts for patrol staff and corporals (Day 

Shift 6 AM – 6 PM, Graveyard 6 PM – 6 AM, Corporals 2 PM – 2 AM).  
The Sergeant and Chief work a standard 8 hours shift Monday 
Through Friday. 

 
4. Volunteer Unit 

 
• This month, the volunteer unit was used for office duties and special 

events. 
 

• The Police Department could only function with the support of our 
volunteer unit.  The volunteers assist with records, property and 
evidence, special events, vacation home checks, and other collateral 
duties as assigned. 

 
 
 



 
 
DATE: JULY 18, 2023 
 
TO: AMY GEDNEY, INTERIM CITY MANAGER 
 
FROM: JODI STENECK, FINANCE MANAGER 
  
SUBJECT:  FINANCE/ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT JUNE 2023 REPORT 
 
 
 
To provide information regarding the activities of the Administration Department for the month 
of June 2023 
 
Wastewater Issues: 

• June 9- staff, along with Councilmember Wratten and Mayor Rhoades, met with ARSA 
staff, RWQCB staff and the attorney for CDCR was there. We discussed compliance 
issues. 

• The RFP for wastewater was issued May 31, staff provided a tour of the wwtp on June 7, 
and RFPs were submitted June 15th. Interviews were held June 19th.  Council approval of 
a contract was June 27th. 

o Onboarding with the new wastewater treatment plant operator has gone well. We 
are still awaiting the arrival of the chlorine tank which was supposed to have 
shipped June 30 and is now scheduled to be shipped July 18th. 

 
Parks: 

• Staff has met with the Amador Central Railroad group to get that agreement in place and 
move forward with getting the train depot repaired. 

• Staff is working on a pro forma for parks costs. 
 
Agendas: 

• Prepared: 
o Three City Council, one Planning Commission, and one Parks and Recreation 

Commission agendas and one Ad Hoc Budget Committee agenda. 
 
Human Resources: 

• Retirement processed for one employee. 
• Hired new Finance Manager. 
• Managed one (1) Workers Compensation claim. 
• Posted advertisement for Public Works Superintendent position. 



• Employee development: All employees have completed their sexual harassment training. 
• Two performance reviews were completed. 

 
Finance: 
Accounts Receivables: 

• Fourteen (14) building permits were issued in June 2023. 
• 2,209 active sewer service customers and 496 are auto pay. 

 
Accounts Payables: 

• Forty-eight (48) warrants were issued in the amount of $229,032.77. 
 
Audit: 

• Kicked off 2020-2021 audit with auditor. 
 
Training: 

• Caselle Financial Software training for Finance Manager 
 

CDBG: 
• Two calls with HCD representative regarding CDBG closure process and re-

interviewed loan recipients on how awarded loans were utilized. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

City of Ione 

Public Works Department 
 
 
DATE: JULY 11, 2023 
TO:   AMY GEDNEY, INTERIM CITY MANAGER 
FROM:  GARRETT ROGERS, ACTING PW SUPERINTENDENT 
RE:  JUNE 2023 MONTHLY PW ACTIVITY 
 
STAFFING: 
We have a part time seasonal employee for the summer assisting with a number of projects including 
weed eating, painting, and general cleaning. 
 
PARKS:  

• Howard Park 
o The basketball backboard has been repaired and installed. 
o Soccer Fields: We are planning on mapping those sprinklers in July. 
o Baseball Fields: We have completed mapping the sprinkler system and are working on 

ensuring watering is consistent.   
• Perry Earl: Regular mowing 
• Oakridge Circle: Regular mowing. 
• Grover: Regular mowing. 
• Train Park:  

o Decorative bark and rocks were added to the park in anticipation of the Wednesday 
nigh Farmers’ Market.  

o We will need to fix the electrical outlets in that area. 
• Train Depot Park: The park was cleaned and the trees were all trimmed six feet up. 
• Pool: Continued maintenance. No issues to report. 

 
STREETS & SIDEWALKS: 

• Park and Ride parking lot: Weed eated and trimmed bushes. 
• Weed abatement has been continuing. 
• We are working on mapping where stop bars and painted stop signs will be placed. Ordered 

stencil and paint. 
 
WASTEWATER: 

• The repair for the berm that was washed out in January has been completed. 
• Staff has been investigating repair options for the water wheel located at the Town Field.  

Repair options have been limited as there are not a lot of parts available for that type of 



 

 

equipment.  As of July 7, 2023, the Rancheria has come up with an option and will bill the 
City for the repair.  

• Staff will be working with our new operator, James Water Service to assist in their transition. 
 
VEHICLES: 

• The new PW trucks are still on back order. 
 
SAFETY: 

• Staff will be working on implementing monthly safety training meetings. 



 June 2023  
Building Department Report 

 

    Permit Summary Report (Total Fees Paid)   
 Current Month 

June 2023 
Month Last Year 

June 2022 
Building 
Count 5 13 
Electrical 
Count 14 11 
Mechanical 
Count 1 5 
New SFD 
Count 4 0 
Plumbing 
Count 0 0 
Total Count 24 29 
Total Fees $5,206.53 $16,855.94 

Total Fees Paid $4,529.47 $16,565.53 

 

Inspection Summary Report by Permit Type 
6/1/2023 TO 7/1/2023 

 Building Electrical Mechanical New SFD Plumbing Row 
Total 

Consultation 0 1 0 0 0 1 
Drywall 0 0 0 2 0 2 

Electrical Panel - Meter Tag 0 0 0 8 0 8 
Energy 0 1 0 0 0 1 

Final Bldg. Inspections 1 0 0 3 0 4 
Final Depart. Inspections 0 0 0 3 0 3 

Final Inspection 3 0 0 0 0 3 
Footing/Underground Plumbing 0 0 0 4 0 4 

Frame, Rough MEP 0 0 0 2 0 2 
HVAC Final 0 0 1 0 0 1 
Inspection 2 0 0 0 0 2 
Insulation 0 0 0 2 0 2 

Lath 0 0 0 2 0 2 
Pool/Spa 9 0 0 0 0 9 
Roof Nail 3 0 0 2 0 5 

Sewer Lateral 0 0 0 4 0 4 
Shear Nailing 0 0 0 8 0 8 

Solar P/V Final 2 20 0 0 0 22 
Structural Slab 0 0 0 4 0 4 

Structure 1 0 0 2 0 3 
Water Heater 0 0 0 0 3 3 

Totals: 21 22 1 46 3 93 
 



 
Agenda Item #G1 

 
DATE: JULY 18, 2023 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: JODI STENECK, FINANCE MANAGER 
  
SUBJECT: JULY 18, 2023 WARRANTS 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that the council review and approve the attached report for payment totaling 
$357,299.59.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$357,299.59 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Due to changes in the Finance Department, the warrants include past due invoices from prior 
months.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Warrant list dated 7-18-23 































Agenda Item #G2                 
CITY OF IONE COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Meeting of June 6, 2023 
 

Mayor Rhoades called meeting to order at 6:00 PM 
 
A.   ROLL CALL: 

 Present:   Stacy Rhoades, Mayor 
                 Jack Mitchell, Vice Mayor 
                 Dominic Atlan, Councilmember  
                 Alison LaFayne, Councilmember                                
                 Diane Wratten, Councilmember (6:13 p.m.)            
Staff:        Amy Gedney, Acting City Manager                                    
                 Andy Pinasco, City Attorney 
                 Janice Traverso, City Clerk   

 
B.    CLOSED SESSION: Closed Session has been moved to before Regular Agenda. 
         
        CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: 
        Agency designated representative: Andy Pinasco, City Attorney 
        Unrepresented employee: Interim City Manager   
       
C.   MAYOR RHOADES LED THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D.   APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
       It was moved by Councilmember Atlan, seconded by Councilmember LaFayne and  
       carried to approve the agenda with changes recommended by Mayor Rhoades: 1)  
       move Closed Session before Regular Agenda and 2) reverse the order of items under  
       Presentations/Announcements. 
         AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, LaFayne 
       NOES: None 
       ABSENT: Wratten (6:13 p.m.) 
       ABSTAIN: None      
 
E.    PRESENTATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
        2.  Proclamation honoring David B. Parker 
                Recommendation:  Adopt Proclamation for David B. Parker from the City  
               Council of the City of Ione – Vice Mayor Jack Mitchell read the Proclamation to 
               David B. Parker. Mr. Parker stated that it is 50 years today that he has been  
               involved in Fire Service and thanked everyone for his proclamation.  
 

1.  2019-2020 Fiscal Year Audit 
                 Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 2023-* Accepting the Fiscal Year 2019- 
                2020 Independent Auditor’s Report – Brian Nash, Richardson & Company,  
                LLP – Mr. Nash reviewed with the Council and public the Management Letter 
                Governance Letter, and major numbers in the Financial Audit. The financial  
                statements have a clean audit opinion, and the Compliance Report does report  



                some deficiencies in financial reporting--same issues as last year. After  
                discussion by the Council, it was moved by Councilmember Wratten, seconded  
                by Vice Mayor Mitchell and carried to table this item until next meeting since  
                the Council received the complete audit at the meeting.  
                AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
                NOES: None 
                ABSENT: None 
                ABSTAIN: None     
          
F.   PUBLIC COMMENT: 
        Jim Scully presented a copy of a letter to CDCR from the Central Valley Regional 
        Water Quality Control Board dated May 22, 2023 regarding the final inspection  
         report for the Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements and Amended  
         Monitoring and Reporting Program requirements compliance evaluation inspection  
         – California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation, Mule Creek State Prison  
        WDID#5SS011005. 
 
        Andy Aguilera, commented on the recent article in the Ledger-Dispatch regarding  
        the letter issued by the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board to  
        CDCR.  Mr. Aguilera received a letter from Amador Water Agency regarding  
        contamination in the Ione water and asked if the City can look into it and maybe  
        have the State do something about it. 
 
        David Anderson commented on Order No. 13267 issued on February 14, 2018  
        by the Regional Water Board prohibiting discharge from Mule Creek Prison storm  
        water system because extraordinary contamination was continually being  
        discharged.    
         
        Tom Quinn: 

• Look forward to working with the new Building Inspector 
• Would like to see the Public Works Manager at each Council Meeting 
• The water that comes from the tap stinks 

 
        Oral Custer last week was Memorial Day and today is D-Day. We should honor our  
        Veterans and support them.   
 
G.  INFORMATION ITEMS:   
      1.  Park and Recreation Commission Summary – May 23, 2023             
        
H.  CONSENT CALENDAR: 
      It was moved by Councilmember Atlan, seconded by Councilmember Wratten  
      and carried to approve the following: 
      1.  Warrants Register May 31, 2023 
      2.  Minutes of May 16, 2023 and May 30, 2023 
      3.  Vacancy on Planning Commission 
      4.   2023 ACRA Pool Agreement 



      5.   Somach, Simmons & Dunn Agreement 
     6.   Revision to the City Attorney Contract   
           AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
          NOES:  None 
          ABSENT: None 
          ABSTAIN: None                                     
 
 I.  PUBLIC HEARING:   
      1.  CDBG-CV1 2020 – Ione Emergency Small Business Loan Program Closeout  
           Hearing 

A. Recommendation:  Hold a Public Hearing to receive input regarding the 
CDBG Program   

B. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-* approving the closeout of the CDBG-CV1 
2020 – Ione Emergency Small Business Loan Program 

          
            CDBG created the Emergency Small Business Loan Program that local agencies  
            could apply for and be dispersed to any local business that qualified.  The City  
            was granted $63,000 and was able to assist eleven local businesses in the 
            community. 
 
            Mayor Rhoades opened the Public Hearing and with no comments from the  
            public, the hearing was closed. 
        
            It was moved by Councilmember Wratten, seconded by Vice Mayor Mitchell and  
            carried to adopt Resolution No. 2023-15 Approving the closeout of the CDBG- 
            CV1 2020 – Ione Emergency Small Business Loan Program. 
            AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
            NOES:  None 
            ABSENT: None 
            ABSTAIN: None                                    
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS:      
For the record:  Action minutes provide the necessary documentation of City Council 
action.  Audio recordings are retained for those desiring more detail on particular agenda 
item discussions.  These audio recordings provide an accurate and comprehensive backup 
of City Council deliberations and citizen discussions. 
 
J.   REGULAR AGENDA: Item moved to before Closed Session. 
      1.   Interim City Manager Employment Agreement – Recommendation:  Adopt  
           Resolution No. 2023-* Authorizing the Mayor to execute an employment  
           agreement for Interim City Manager.                
 
K.   REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY MANAGER: 

• Interviews on June 19, 2023 for Wastewater Operations contractor and 
would like two Councilmembers and two technical members on the 



interview panel.  Mayor Rhoades and Vice Mayor Mitchell were 
appointment (Wastewater Committee). 

 
L.      COUNCIL COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/FUTURE AGENDA: 

• Councilmember Wratten – discussion on the WIRIS project on an upcoming 
meeting. 

• Councilmember LaFayne: 
1.  Would like to provide a presentation at the next Council meeting from 

Caltrans on their Traffic Control Program. 
2.   Would like to schedule a meeting with Wildflower Subdivision 

developer on the streets. 
3.   Would like to see three RFP’s for pre-approved contractors for formal 

and informal bids, which is part of the Purchasing and Procurement 
Ordinance. 

4.   Look into City Volunteer Groups, which funding is available. 
5.   Would like a Social Media Policy for City staff and contractors. 
6.   City Manager is reviewing the job description for Public Works 

Manager. 
7.   Would like to see a mission statement for Park & Recreation 

Commissioners. 
• Mayor Rhoades 

1. Public Works working on the basketball courts at Howard Park 
2. Read a letter from Oliver Currant regarding a crosswalk on West 

Marlette by Church of Latter-Day Saints 
 

M.      DISPOSITION OF CLOSED SESSION: Mayor Rhoades announced that  
           negotiation concluded.  No further reportable action on the following: 
           CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATIORS: 
           Agency designated representative:  Andy Pinasco, City Attorney 
           Unrepresented employee: Interim City Manager 
 
N.       REGULAR AGENDA: 
           1.  Interim City Manager Employment Agreement* 
                Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 2023-* Authorizing the Mayor to  
                execute an employment agreement for Interim City Manager 
                The City Attorney orally summarized the compensation and fringe benefits  
                recommended for the Interim City Manager contract, which are as follows: 
                Annual Compensation of $160,000 per year, $15,000 of deferred compensation  
                to be paid in fractional amounts in pay period, vacation leave accrued in  
                accordance with City of Ione policies, and 80 hours of administrative time off  
                per year.  It was moved by Vice Mayor Mitchell, seconded by Councilmember  
                Wratten and carried to approve the terms of the Interim City Manager contract  
                and authorize Mayor Rhoades to sign on behalf of the City. 
                AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, Wratten 
                NOES:  LaFayne 
                ABSENT: None 



                ABSTAIN: None                                     
 
O. ADJOURNMENT:   
           Mayor Rhoades adjourned the meeting. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Janice Traverso 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
          
                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item #G2 
CITY OF IONE COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Meeting of June 20, 2023 
 

Mayor Rhoades called meeting to order at 6:00 PM 
 
A.   ROLL CALL: 

 Present:   Stacy Rhoades, Mayor 
                 Jack Mitchell, Vice Mayor 
                 Dominic Atlan, Councilmember  
                 Alison LaFayne, Councilmember                                
                 Diane Wratten, Councilmember             
Staff:        Amy Gedney, Acting City Manager                                    
                 Andy Pinasco, City Attorney 
                 Janice Traverso, City Clerk   

 
B.    CLOSED SESSION: None         
       
C.   MAYOR RHOADES LED THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D.   APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
       It was moved by Councilmember Atlan, seconded by Councilmember Wratten and  
       carried to approve the agenda with all the items under the Consent Calendar moved  
       to Regular Agenda: G1) Minutes of June 6, 2023, G2) Signatures on Bank Accounts;  
       and G3) Revised Job Description-Public Works Superintendent.  
       AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
       NOES: None 
       ABSENT: None  
       ABSTAIN: None      
 
E.   PRESENTATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
       1.  Caltrans Traffic Control Program – Alison LaFayne commented that funds are  
            available through the Traffic Control Program to help with the traffic congestion  
            and Crossing Guards for the schools.  There are things that need to be put into  
            place before we can consider these programs. I will be working with Police Chief  
            Alfred and also, reach out to Senator Gil to help in obtaining the funds that are  
            available. 
             
F.   PUBLIC COMMENT: 
       Steve Page, Stoneybrook Drive attended the recent Creek Committee  
       Meeting and asked Council if there were any plans to rebuild the creek banks  
       because of the damage caused by the storms this past winter.  Council advised Mr.  
       Page to make an appointment with the City Manager to discuss the City’s plans for  
       repairing the banks. 
 
       Kathy Vanstein, current manager of the Howard Park Arena announced that her last  
       day as manager of the Arena is July 7, 2023.  Ms. Vanstein previously put in her 90  



       day notice to the City, but then retracted her resignation. At the recent Park and  
       Recreation Commission, they voted to extend her contract for 90 days, but after  
       meeting with staff today, my last day is July 7, 2023.  I wish the best for the arena 
       and thanked the Council for the opportunity. 
 
G.  INFORMATION ITEMS:   
      1.  Receive and File Police Department 2023 May Report   
         
H.  CONSENT CALENDAR: Council requested items under the Consent Calendar be  
      moved to the Regular Agenda for discussion.    
                 
I.  PUBLIC HEARING:  None 
       
DISCUSSION ITEMS:      
For the record:  Action minutes provide the necessary documentation of City Council 
action.  Audio recordings are retained for those desiring more detail on particular agenda 
item discussions.  These audio recordings provide an accurate and comprehensive backup 
of City Council deliberations and citizen discussions. 
 
J.   REGULAR AGENDA:  
      1.  Approval of Minutes – June 6, 2023 – Council asked that this item be continued to  
           the next meeting because the action of the Regular Agenda Item, Adopt  
           Resolution No. 2023-16 Authorizing the Mayor to execute an employment  
           agreement for Interim City Manager, was not included in the minutes.    
 
      3.  Revised Job Description – Public Works Superintendent – With staffing changes, 
           often new job descriptions are required to better suit the needs of the City.  The  
           City currently has a position for Public Works Manager and the current Public  
           Works Manager is retiring. After a review of City operations, it appears that  
           reverting this position back to a Superintendent will best suit the needs of the City. 
           Councilmember LaFayne recalls that we upped the bar earlier this year and now 
           we are lowering the bar. I feel that what we are facing, we need to beef up the  
           department heads. City Manager Gedney explained that I would like that position  
           to report directly to the City Manager until we can access everything and the  
           budget. I anticipate we are going to have a downturn in the revenue because of less  
           building permits being issued in the future. After discussion, it was moved by  
           Councilmember Wratten, seconded by Councilmember Atlan and carried to  
           adopt Resolution No. 2023-21 approving the job description of Public Works  
           Superintendent with the addition of five-year work experience to the position. 
           AYES:  Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
           NOES:  Rhoades, Mitchell 
           ABSENT: None  
           ABSTAIN: None      
 
       
 



 
       2. Signatures on Bank Accounts – It was moved by Councilmember Atlan, seconded  
           by Councilmember Wratten and carried to approve the following resolutions with  
           the deletion of Chief of Police and City Clerk, and adding, Mayor, Vice Mayor  
           and Interim City Manager.              

a.  Resolution No. 2023-17 – Bank of Marin 
b.  Resolution No. 2023-18 – Wells Fargo Bank 
c.  Resolution No. 2023-19 -  Cambridge Investment Research 
d.  Resolution No. 2023-20 -  Local Agency Investment Fund 

           AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
           NOES: None 
           ABSENT: None  
           ABSTAIN: None      
 
      4.  City Council Committee Assignments – Councilmember LaFayne was assigned to  
           be the City to be the representative on the Council of Tourism, Amador County  
           Economic Development Committee and the Parks and Recreation Commission.  
           Councilmember LaFayne has asked that she be removed from the assignments. 
           Because the Council of Tourism meets quarterly; the Amador County Economic 
           Development Committee has met irregularly, and staff already provides support  
           for the Parks and Recreation Commission, staff does not believe that an  
           assignment of a Councilmember is warranted.  Councilmember LaFayne agreed to  
           stay on as Park and Recreation Commission liaison and the Economic  
           Development Committee liaison.  Mayor Rhoades agreed to be the liaison on the 
           Council of Tourism.  
 
           Councilmember LaFayne would like to see a Park & Recreation manual that lists  
           their duties and responsibilities, a copy of every contract that is in Howard Park,  
           copies of the monthly warrants, a copy of the operating budget as it pertains to  
           Parks, along with the CIP Budget. I think it is an important Commission and  
           would like a representative to attend the first Council meeting of the month to give  
           updates—they need a direct link to the Council.   
            
      5.  Master Services Agreement with West Yost – The City will need to complete  
           several activities in the next fiscal year related to permitting of the WWTP and  
           COWRF. To accomplish these efforts, it is proposed that the City enter into a 
           Master Professional Services Agreement with West Yost Associates that allows  
           for issuance of several Task Order.  The following are the Task Orders for the next 
           fiscal year:  Title 22 Report; As Needed Support; Rescission and Reissuance of the  
           WWTP Cease and Desist Order; Pre-Treatment Requirements for COWRF  
           Dischargers; WWTP/COWRF Interconnect Project and WWTP Permit  
           Modifications. 

a.  It was moved by Councilmember Atlan, seconded by Vice Mayor Mitchell 
and carried to adopt Resolution No. 2023-22 exempting itself from the 
Municipal Code Section 2.44.150 – procurement procedures and authorizing 
the City Manager to execute a Master Professional Service Agreement with 



West Yost for engineering support for the Wastewater Treatment Plant and 
Sewer Collections System. 
AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None  
ABSTAIN: None      
 

b. It was moved by Vice Mayor Mitchell, seconded by Mayor Rhoades and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 2023-23 the City Manager to execute a Task 
Order with West Yost for developing a Title 22 engineering report for the City 
of Ione Castle Oaks Water Reclamation Facility and Golf Course. 
AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell  
NOES:  Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
ABSENT: None  
ABSTAIN: None      

                 Motion died. 
 
                 It was moved by Vice Mayor Mitchell, seconded by Councilmember Wratten  
                 and carried to adopt Resolution No. 2023-23 the City Manager to execute a  
                 Task Order with West Yost for developing a Title 22 engineering report for the  
                 City of Ione Castle Oaks Water Reclamation Facility and Golf Course with the  
                 caveat that the City Manager, Amy Gedney will negotiate the price with West  
                 Yost to see if we can bring the cost down and it will be brought before the  
                 City to vote on at that time. 

AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, Wratten 
NOES:  LaFayne 
ABSENT: None  
ABSTAIN: None      

 
c. It was moved by Councilmember Atlan, seconded by Vice Mayor Mitchell and 

carried to adopt Resolution No. 2023-24 authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a Task Order with West Yost for as needed support. 
AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None  
ABSTAIN: None      

       
       6.  SB-1 Road Maintenance and Repair Projects – Senate Bill 1 (SB-1) was approved  
            in 2017 by the Governor. This bill provides new revenues for road maintenance  
            projects within the City.  The City is projected to receive approximately $175,337  
            in revenues in revenues from SB-1. It was moved by Councilmember Atlan,  
            seconded by Vice Mayor Mitchell and carried to adopt Resolution No. 2023-24 
            adopting a list of projects for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 funded by the Road Repair 
            and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB-1).  
            AYES:  Rhoades, Mitchell, Atlan, LaFayne, Wratten 
            NOES: None 



            ABSENT: None  
            ABSTAIN: None      
                
K.  REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY MANAGER: 

• Amy Gedney introduced the new Finance Manager, Jodi Steneck 
• Staff working on improving process and procedures for all City staff 
• Working on getting staff up to date on required training 
• Working on Budget—draft will be presented July 18, 2023 
•  Wastewater contractor interviews held this week and unanimously agreed on 

the contractor. Attorney working on contract and special meeting will be June 
26, 2023 with their start date of June 27, 2023. 

• Insurance settlement received for sewer overflow at City Hall of $99,000. 
• Howard Park Master Plan meeting went well and staff is working on putting 

together the results of the survey and will work with the City Engineer to 
provide a layout.   

 
L.   COUNCIL COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/FUTURE AGENDA: 
       Dominic Atlan: 

• Cost analysis on the parks--labor costs, utilities, irrigation and cost for 
Soccer, and Little League 

• Update on the roads in the Wildflower Subdivision 
• Update on the management of the Arena 
• Would like summaries for each of the Committee meetings 

 
       Alison LaFayne: 

• Wildflower Update - Staff has been working with Axios Homes regarding the 
roads 

• Missing minutes on the Website for February through June, 2023 
• ACRA Impact Fees were given to staff—City Manager will follow up on 

how the City can collect the fees. 
• Human Resources Update – staff has received the report and staff will report 

on it at a later date 
• Have interest from the public on the Economic Development Committee and 

would like to make sure it does not fall by the wayside 
• Reach out to Junior Rodeo Association for possible Arena maintenance 

 
         Diane Wratten: 

•        Update on WIRIS-John Gedney, ACTC will be giving a presentation in    
   August 

•        Would like information on the Pool posted on the City’s website (closures  
   and open times) 

•        Would like the Auditor’s position on the single point review 
 
          
  



Jack Mitchell: 
•     Thanked the City Council and staff for doing a standup job for a citizen who 

had a sewer issue. 
 
 Stacy Rhoades: 

•     Creek Committee met and had a presentation from CalFire regarding the 
cleanup. 
                 

M. ADJOURNMENT:   
           It was moved by Councilmember Wratten, seconded by Councilmember LaFayne 
and carried to adjourn meeting. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Janice Traverso 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
          
                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Agenda Item #G3 

 
DATE: JULY 18, 2023 
 
TO: MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 
FROM: STACY RHOADES, MAYOR 
  
SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT TO PLANNING COMMISSION  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
By motion, confirm Mayor Rhoades recommendation to appoint Karen Huss to the Planning 
Commission. Appointment will expire October, 2024. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Planning Commissioners receive $10.00 per meeting attended. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
According to the Ione Municipal Code, Chapter 2.17.030, the Mayor shall appoint members of 
the Planning Commission, with the approval of the City Council to serve four year terms.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Letter and resume from Karen Huss 
 









 
Agenda Item #I1 

 
DATE: JULY 18, 2023 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: AMY GEDNEY, INTERIM CITY MANAGER 
  
SUBJECT: 2019-2020 AUDIT 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Accept the 2019-2020 Audit.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The 2019-2020 Audit was presented at your June 20th meeting. At that time the Council asked 
for more time to review.  Our auditor will be present to ask additional questions.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The audit provides an independent overview of the City’s financial position as well as its policies 
and practices relating to the City’s finances.  There are a number of findings noted in the report 
that staff is working to correct. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. 2019 -2020 audit 
B. App Limit Report 2020 
C. Governance Letter 
D. Management Letter 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and  
Members of the City Council 

City of Ione, California 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ione, California 
(the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes 
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, the Schedule of the Proportionate Share of 
the Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Contributions to the Pension Plan and Schedule of Changes in the 
OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.  The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 11, 2023 
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

 

May 11, 2023 
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This discussion and analysis of the City of Ione's financial statements is designed to provide an 
overview of the City's financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.  This 
information is presented in conjunction with the audited basic financial statements, which follow 
this section.  
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The City’s net position was $48,558,379 at June 30, 2020.  Net position increased $60,475 or 

.12%.  Of the total net position, $44,781,703 represents the net investment in capital assets 
with the remaining restricted for specific purposes:  public safety, community development, 
streets and roads, and capital projects. 

 Total cash and investments increased $575,281 or 9.69% to $6,512,425. 

 As of June 30, 2020, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balance of 
$5,339,487. In comparison, Fiscal Year 2018–19 had a combined fund balance of $4,946,029.  
Four governmental funds are classified as major.  They are:  General Fund, HOME Program 
Grant, CDBG Program Grant, and Local Traffic Mitigation Capital Projects. 

 Fund balance of the General Fund increased $310,384 or 55.05% to $(253,392) as of June 
30, 2020.  Of the fund balance $662,453 is non-spendable reflecting advances to other funds 
(receivable) and the remainder in the amount of $(915,845) is reported as unassigned. 

 The General Fund cash balance increased $358,284 or 104.59% from $342,574 to $700,858. 

 Projects funded by the gas tax fund include storm drains, street repairs and street 
improvements. 

 The City’s Proprietary Fund (Sewer Fund) net position increased $99,943 or .86% to 
$11,723,854.  Cash and investments decreased $12,505 or (1.67%) to $734,386. 

 The City’s long-term liabilities include a note payable for purchase of a commercial lawn 
mower, lease for the new fire station, compensated absences, net pension liability, and net 
OPEB obligation. The long-term capital lease loan for Fire Station No. 2 with an original 
principal balance of $560,000 has an outstanding balance as of June 30, 2020 of $292,862.  
The City’s proprietary fund (sewer) long-term liabilities consist of a long-term loan for sewer 
capital construction in the amount of $3,250,000 with a remaining balance of $2,765,609, 
compensated absences, net pension liability, and net OPEB obligation. 

 
Overview Of the Financial Statements  
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements.  The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the basic financial 
statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of City finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  The Statement of Net Position 
includes information on the City's assets and liabilities and provide information about the nature 
and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to City creditors (liabilities).  
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.  The Statement of Activities presents 
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information showing how net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in 
net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected 
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).  Both of these government-wide financial 
statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other function that are intended to 
recover all or a portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  
The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, community 
development, public works, streets and roads, parks and recreation; business-type activities are 
sewer operations. 
 
Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and to demonstrate finance-related 
legal compliance.  All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental 
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements; however, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as of balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating the City’s 
near-term requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The Governmental Funds Financial Statements provide detailed information about each of the 
City’s most significant funds, called major funds.  The concept of major funds, and the 
determination of which are major funds, was established by Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement 34 and replaces the concept of combining like funds and presenting 
them as one total.  Instead, each major fund is presented individually, with all non-major funds 
summarized and presented only in a single column.  Subordinate schedules present the details 
of these non-major funds.  Major funds present the major activities of the City for the year, and 
may change from year to year as a result of changes in the pattern of the City’s activities.  The 
City’s major governmental funds are:  General Fund, HOME Program Grant Special Revenue 
Fund, CDBG Program Grant Special Revenue Fund, and Local Traffic Mitigation Capital Projects 
Fund.                 
 
Proprietary fund(s) are used to account for the services the City charges to provide which in this 
case is sewer.  Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in 
the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.  In fact, the City’s enterprise fund 
(a component of proprietary funds) is identical to the business type activities that are reported in 
the government-wide statements, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash 
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flows, for proprietary funds.  The fund provides the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide 
separate information for sewer operations, which is considered a major fund of the City. 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs.  The 
City of Ione maintains three fiduciary or agency funds:  community facilities districts, asset seizure 
police, and regional traffic mitigation. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements and 
can be found immediately following the basic financial statements. 
 
Other Information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s budgetary 
comparative information for its major governmental funds. 
 
Statement of Net Position 
 
The City’s net position at the end of the year was $48.56M as compared to $48.50M in the prior 
year, an increase of $60K or .12%, Governmental activities net position decreased by $39K or 
(.11%) and the business-type activities net position increased by $100K or .86%.  The increase 
in net position is primarily due to an increase in revenues and decrease in expenditures. 
 

 
 

Assets: FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 Amount %

Cash and other assets 7,541,824$ 8,007,374$ 1,222,375$ 1,249,437$ 8,764,199$ 9,256,811$ 492,612$ 5.6%

Total Capital Assets 34,141,790 34,106,633 14,263,003 13,732,889 48,404,793 47,839,522 (565,271) -1.2%

Total Assets 41,683,614 42,114,007 15,485,378 14,982,326 57,168,992 57,096,333 (72,659) -0.1%

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Pension plan 831,082 750,130 47,040 44,440 878,122 794,570            (83,552) -9.5%

OPEB 46,937 33,390 3,344 2,362 50,281 35,752             (14,529) -28.9%

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 878,019 783,520 50,384 46,802 928,403 830,322 (98,081) -10.6%

Liabilities:

Current 238,083 360,090 632,617 88,696 870,700 448,786            (421,914) -48.5%

Noncurrent liabilities 5,135,495 4,287,425 3,249,618 3,113,693 8,385,113 7,401,118         (983,995) -11.7%

Total Liabilities 5,373,578 4,647,515 3,882,235 3,202,389 9,255,813 7,849,904 (1,405,909) -15.2%

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Pension plan 199,664 221,407 21,467 18,435 221,131 239,842            18,711 8.5%

OPEB plan 114,398 1,194,080 8,149 84,450 122,547 1,278,530         1,155,983 943.3%

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 314,062 1,415,487 29,616 102,885 343,678 1,518,372 1,174,694 341.8%

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 33,799,139 33,826,373 11,411,964 10,955,330 45,211,103 44,781,703       (429,400) -0.9%

Restricted 9,180,675 10,287,519 -                    -                     9,180,675       10,287,519       1,106,844       12.1%

Unrestricted (6,105,821) (7,279,367) 211,947 768,524 (5,893,874) (6,510,843)        (616,969) 10.5%
Total Net Position 36,873,993$ 36,834,525$ 11,623,911$ 11,723,854$ 48,497,904$ 48,558,379$ 60,475$ 0.1%

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities VarianceTotal
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Statement of Activities 
 
Governmental Activities revenues reflect a decrease primarily in charges for services, operating 
grants/contributions, and capital grants and contributions with an overall decrease of $512,167, 
or (10.10%).  Expenses Increased from the prior year by $243,593, or 5.59%, primarily due to 
increased public safety expenses of $139,769. 

 

Business-type Activities revenues reflect a decrease primarily in capital contributions (impact fees 
and connection fees) with an overall decrease of $256,090, or (13.8%).  Expenses decreased 
from the prior year by $418,447, or (21.8%), primarily due to decrease in operating expenses 
related to sewer maintenance. 

Revenues: FY 18/19 FY 19/20 Amount %
Charges for services $1,286,739 $1,279,367 ($7,372) -0.6%
Capital grants/contributions 540,576 305,025 14,441 (235,551) -43.6%
Investment Income 27,608 14,441 (13,167) -47.7%

Total Revenues 1,854,923 1,598,833 (256,090) -13.8%

Expenses:
Wastewater 1,849,372 1,425,328 (424,044) -22.9%
Interest on debt 67,965 73,562 5,597 8.2%

Total Expenses 1,917,337 1,498,890 (418,447) -21.8%

Change in Net Position (62,414) 99,943 162,357 -260.1%
Net position, beginning of year 11,686,325 11,623,911 (62,414)
Net position, end of year $11,623,911 $11,723,854 $99,943 0.9%

Business-Type Activities Variance

 

Revenues: FY 18/19 FY 19/20 Amount %
Taxes $1,954,685 $2,195,439 $240,754 12.3%
Charges for services 1,078,824 753,322 (325,502) -30.2%
Operating grants/contributions 820,432 605,113 (215,319) -26.2%
Capital grants/contributions 1,032,856 878,414 (154,442) -15.0%
Other Revenue 35,688 13,609 (22,079) -61.9%
Investment Income 147,773 112,194 (35,579) -24.1%

Total Revenues 5,070,258 4,558,091 (512,167) -10.1%

Expenses:
General government 667,548 677,994 10,446 1.6%
Public safety 2,473,724 2,613,493 139,769 5.7%
Community development 330,392 338,882 8,490 2.6%
Parks and recreation 116,481 152,076 35,595 30.6%
Public works 638,025 666,135 28,110 4.4%
Streets and roads 86,113 106,057 19,944 23.2%
Interest on debt 41,683 42,922 1,239 3.0%

Total Expenses 4,353,966 4,597,559 243,593 5.6%

Change in Net Position 716,292 (39,468) (755,760) -105.5%
Net position, beginning of year 36,157,701 36,873,993 716,292
Net position, end of year $36,873,993 $36,834,525 ($39,468) -0.1%

Governmental Activities Variance
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General Fund Budget 

The City adopts an annual budget that includes operating costs, staffing, vehicles, and capital 
expenditures.  Actual revenues were $204,943 higher than the final budget amounts in taxes,  
intergovernmental revenue, and charges for services.  The final budget for expenditures reported 
in the General Fund was $82,318 lower than actual expenditures in public safety, parks and 
recreation, capital outlay, and debt service. 

Capital Assets 

The City’s investment in capital assets, net of depreciation, for its governmental and business-
type activities were $47.8 million as of June 30, 2020 and $48.4 million as of June 30, 2019, 
respectively.  Major governmental capital asset additions during the year were $399,237 for police 
and fire vehicles, building improvements, and police equipment.  Additions in business-type 
activities were $242,307 for Aroyo Seco sewer line replacement, solar, and sewer aerator offset 
by removal of $382,410 reported in 2019 for sewer system sludge removal.  More detail of the 
capital assets and current transactions can be found in Note E of the Financials Statements. 

Long-Term Debt 

The City’s long-term liabilities are for capital acquisitions/improvements, compensated absences, 
pension liability, and OPEB obligation.  As of June 30, 2020, the City’s long-term liabilities for 
governmental and business-type activities are $4.2 million and $3.1 million, respectively.  More 
detail of the long-term liabilities and current transactions can be found in Note F of the Financial 
Statements. 

Economic Factors and Future Budgets 

The City of Ione experienced significant building within the City in the years following this audit.  
With this, City revenues have increased which facilitates improvement of the City’s financial 
condition.  In Fiscal Year 2021-2022, the City implemented measures to address overall financial 
sustainability including a 25 year repayment plan for interfund loans and enhanced transparency.  
This will provide the community with a better understanding of City activities and related financial 
impacts. 

Requests For Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all of its 
citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to 
the City of Ione, Finance Department, 1 East Main Street, Ione, CA 95640. 
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Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS

Cash and investments 5,778,039$      734,386$         6,512,425$      
    Receivables:  

Accounts receivable 229,989           61,075             291,064           
Due from other governments 164,858           136,392           301,250           
Interest receivable - investments 2,924               -                       2,924               
Interest receivable - loans receivable 478,648           -                       478,648           
Loans receivable 1,612,866        -                       1,612,866        

Internal balances (308,955)          308,955           -                       
Deposits with others 48,945             8,629               57,574             
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 29,720,274      5,726,392        35,446,666      
Depreciable, net 4,386,359        8,006,497        12,392,856      

Total Capital Assets 34,106,633      13,732,889      47,839,522      
Total Assets 42,113,947      14,982,326      57,096,273      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension plan 750,130           44,440             794,570           
Other post employment benefits (OPEB) plan 33,390             2,362               35,752             

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 783,520           46,802             830,322           
  

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities 122,269           40,953             163,222           
Accrued payroll and benefits 72,915             12,495             85,410             
Due to other governments 151,934           -                       151,934           
Accrued interest payable -                       23,853             23,853             
Unearned revenues -                       4,145               4,145               
Refundable deposits 12,912             7,250               20,162             
Noncurrent liabilities - current portion 101,501           88,155             189,656           
Noncurrent liabilities - noncurrent portion 4,185,924        3,025,538        7,211,462        

Total Liabilities 4,647,455        3,202,389        7,849,844        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension plan 221,407           18,435             239,842           
OPEB plan 1,194,080        84,450             1,278,530        

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,415,487        102,885           1,518,372        

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 33,826,373      10,955,330      44,781,703      
Restricted for public safety 2,409,038        -                       2,409,038        
Restricted for community development 2,854,005        -                       2,854,005        
Restricted for streets and roads 1,551,054        -                       1,551,054        
Restricted for capital projects 3,473,422        -                       3,473,422        
Unrestricted (7,279,367)       768,524           (6,510,843)       

Total Net Position 36,834,525$    11,723,854$    48,558,379$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2020

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA
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Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

FUNCTIONS AND PROGRAMS Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT   
  GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES   

General government  677,994$      143,204$       (438)$          19,201$         (516,027)$       -$                     (516,027)$      
Public safety  2,613,493 160,042 612,567 332,747 (1,508,137)      -                       (1,508,137)     
Community development  338,882 -                    -                  -                    (338,882)         -                       (338,882)        
Public works  666,135 450,076 -                  -                    (216,059)         -                       (216,059)        
Streets and roads  106,057 -                    (7,016)         386,636         273,563          -                       273,563          
Parks and recreation  152,076 -                    -                  139,830         (12,246)           -                       (12,246)          
Interest on long term debt  42,922 -                    -                  -                    (42,922)           -                       (42,922)          

Total Governmental Activities  4,597,559     753,322         605,113       878,414         (2,360,710)      -                       (2,360,710)     

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES  
Sewer Fund  1,498,890     1,279,367      -                  305,025         -                     85,502              85,502            

Total Buisness-type Activities  1,498,890     1,279,367      -                  305,025         -                     85,502              85,502            

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 6,096,449$   2,032,689$    605,113$     1,183,439$    (2,360,710)      85,502              (2,275,208)     

General Revenues:  
Taxes:  

Property taxes  849,115 -                       849,115          
Sales and use taxes  231,141 -                       231,141          
Transient occupancy tax  435 -                       435                
Franchises  106,610 -                       106,610          
Motor vehicle in-lieu tax 1,008,138 -                       1,008,138       

Other revenue  13,609 -                       13,609            
Investment income  112,194 14,441              126,635          

Total General Revenues  2,321,242       14,441              2,335,683       

Change in Net Position  (39,468)           99,943              60,475            

Net Position, Beginning of Year  36,873,993     11,623,911       48,497,904     

Net Position, End of Year  36,834,525$   11,723,854$     48,558,379$   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  

Program Revenues

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position  
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HOME CDBG Local
Program Program Traffic

Grant Grant Mitigation
Special Special Capital Nonmajor Total

General Revenue Revenue Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments 700,858$      362,401$      36,830$        1,191,124$   3,486,826$   5,778,039$     

    Receivables:
Accounts receivable 228,225        -                   -                   -                   1,764            229,989          
Due from other governments 100,489        -                   -                   -                   27,752          128,241          
Interest receivable - investments 2,924            -                   -                   36,617          39,541            
Interest receivable - loans receivable -                   385,028        76,839          -                   16,781          478,648          
Loans receivable -                   1,162,689     397,416        -                   52,761          1,612,866       

Deposits with others 46,614          -                   -                   -                   2,331            48,945            
Due from other funds 86,083          -                   -                   -                   -                   86,083            
Advances to other funds 662,453        -                   -                   180,000        1,936,194     2,778,647       

Total Assets 1,827,646$   1,910,118$   511,085$      1,371,124$   5,561,026$   11,180,999$   

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities 71,723$        -$                 -$                 -$                 50,546$        122,269$        
Accrued payroll and benefits 68,970          -                   -                   -                   3,945            72,915            
Due to other funds -                   -                   -                   -                   86,083          86,083            
Due to other governments 151,934        -                   -                   -                   151,934          
Refundable deposits 12,912          -                   -                   -                   -                   12,912            
Advances from other funds 1,560,345     -                   -                   -                   1,527,257     3,087,602       

Total Liabilities 1,865,884     -                   -                   -                   1,667,831     3,533,715       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - other receivables 215,154        -                   -                   -                   30                 215,184          
Unavailable revenue - loan interest receivable -                   385,028        76,839          -                   16,781          478,648          
Unavailable revenue - loan principal receivable -                   1,162,688     397,416        -                   53,861          1,613,965       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 215,154        1,547,716     474,255        -                   70,672          2,307,797       

Fund balances:  
Nonspendable 662,453        -                   -                   -                   -                   662,453          
Restricted for public safety -                   -                   -                   -                   1,901,062     1,901,062       
Restricted for community development -                   362,402        36,830          -                   355,353        754,585          
Restricted for streets and roads -                   -                   -                   -                   1,364,723     1,364,723       
Restricted for capital projects -                   -                   -                   1,371,124     1,742,301     3,113,425       
Unassigned (915,845)       -                   -                   -                   (1,540,916)    (2,456,761)      

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) (253,392)       362,402        36,830          1,371,124     3,822,523     5,339,487       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Fund Balances 1,827,646$   1,910,118$   511,085$      1,371,124$   5,561,026$   11,180,999$   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

BALANCE SHEETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2020

Major Funds
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Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 5,339,487$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because: 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, are not current financial resources

and are not included in the governmental funds.  34,106,633

Deferred outflows of resources related to the City's pension and OPEB plans will  reduce the net 
pension and OPEB liabilities in the future. 783,520
 

Deferred inflows for unavailable revenue in governmental funds are recognized in the  government-
wide statements. 2,307,797

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported  
on the governmental funds balance sheet.  (4,287,425)       
 

Deferred inflows of resources related to the City's pension and OPEB plans will be reflected in the
net pension and OPEB liabilities in the future. (1,415,487)       

Net Position of Governmental Activities 36,834,525$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEETS
TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2020
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HOME CDBG Local
Program Program Traffic

Grant Grant Mitigation
 Special Special Capital Nonmajor Total

General Revenue Revenue Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES:
Taxes 1,172,739$   -$                 -$                 -$                 5,583$          1,178,322$   
Impact fees -                   -                   -                   65,047          884,944        949,991        
Licenses, fees and permits 230,647        -                   -                   -                   230,647        
Use of money and property 55,868          1,634            161               6,016            45,415          109,094        
Intergovernmental revenues 1,023,900     -                   -                   -                   548,676        1,572,576     
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 10,888          -                   -                   -                   756               11,644          
Charges for services 238,512        -                   -                   -                   242,698        481,210        
Other 22,567          -                   -                   -                   44,742          67,309          

Total Revenues 2,755,121     1,634            161               71,063          1,772,814     4,600,793     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 600,273        -                   -                   -                   -                   600,273        
Public ways and facilities/

transportation 569,872        -                   -                   -                   446,989        1,016,861     
Public safety 894,184        -                   -                   -                   892,512        1,786,696     
Parks and recreation 311,099        -                   -                   -                   887               311,986        

Capital outlay 43,019          -                   -                   -                   370,735        413,754        
Debt Service:                        

Principal 12,343          -                   -                   -                   29,713          42,056          
Interest 21,178          18                 -                   -                   21,744          42,940          

Total Expenditures 2,451,968     18                 -                   -                   1,762,580     4,214,566     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 303,153        1,616            161               71,063          10,234          386,227        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from insurance 7,231            -                   -                   -                   -                   7,231            
Transfers in -                   -                   -                   -                   649,551        649,551        
Transfers out -                   -                   -                   -                   (649,551)       (649,551)       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 7,231            -                   -                   -                   -                   7,231            

Net Change in Fund Balances 310,384        1,616            161               71,063          10,234          393,458        
    
Fund Balances (Deficit), Beginning of Year (563,776)       360,786        36,669          1,300,061     3,812,289     4,946,029     
 
Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year (253,392)$     362,402$      36,830$        1,371,124$   3,822,523$   5,339,487$   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Major Funds

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 393,458$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures and proceeds from disposals of capital 

assets as revenues.  However, in the government-wide statement of activities, the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense and gains or losses
on disposals of capital assets is reported. 

Depreciation expense (448,911)
Capital outlay 413,754         

Some receivables are deferred in the governmental funds because the amounts do not represent current 
financial resources that are recognized under the accrual basis in the statement of activities. This
 amount represents the change in deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable revenue. (49,915)          

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources of related to the City's pension and OPEB plans do not
result in the receipt or use of current financial resources and are not reported in the governmental 
funds as follows:

Change in deferred outflows of resources - pension plan (80,952)
Change in deferred outflows of resources - OPEB plan (13,547)          
Change in deferred inflows of resources - pension plan (21,743)          
Change in deferred inflows of resources - OPEB plan (1,079,682)     

Changes in the long-term liabilities reported in the statement of  activities do not  require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in  governmental funds.  Principal
payments are reported as expenditures in governmental funds, but are reported as a reduction of the
liability in the statement  of net position.  These amounts represent the changes in long-term liabilities:

Changes in long-term debt 42,056           
Change in compensated absences liability (32,380)          
Change in net pension liability (57,103)          
Change in net OPEB liability 895,497         

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (39,468)$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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Sewer
Fund

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 734,386$         
Receivables:

Accounts receivable 61,075
Due from other governments 136,392           

Deposits with others 8,629
Total Current Assets 940,482           

Noncurrent Assets:
Advances to other funds 308,955
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 5,726,392
Depreciable, net 8,006,497

Total capital assets 13,732,889      
Total Assets 14,982,326      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension plan 44,440
OPEB plan 2,362

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 46,802

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other liabilities 40,953
Accrued payroll and benefits 12,495
Interest payable 23,853
Unearned revenues 4,145               
Refundable deposits 7,250
Noncurrent liabilities - current portion 88,155

Total Current Liabilities 176,851           

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Noncurrent liabilities - noncurrent portion 3,025,538

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,025,538        

Total Liabilities 3,202,389        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension plan 18,435
OPEB plan 84,450             

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 102,885

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 10,955,330      
Unrestricted 768,524           

Total Net Position 11,723,854$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND - ENTERPRISE FUND

June 30, 2020
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Sewer
Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 1,260,647$    
Other 18,720           

Total Operating Revenues 1,279,367      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 286,021
Services and supplies 768,872
Depreciation 370,435         

Total Operating Expenses 1,425,328      
Operating Income (Loss) (145,961)       

NON OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 14,441
Interest expense (73,562)         

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (59,121)         
Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions and Transfers (205,082)       

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Connection fees 305,025

Net Capital Contributions and Transfers 305,025         

           Change in Net Position 99,943           

Net Position, Beginning of Year 11,623,911    

Net Position, End of Year 11,723,854$  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND - ENTERPRISE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Sewer
Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers 1,238,080$    
Cash payments to suppliers (553,113)       
Cash payments to employees (282,963)       

Cash Provided by Operating Activities 402,004         

Cash Flows from Noncapital and Financing Activities:
Amounts received from (paid to) other funds 1,000             

Cash Provided by Noncapital and Financing Activities 1,000             

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of capital assets (575,246)       
Connection fees 305,025         
Principal paid on long-term debt (85,430)         
Interest paid on long-term debt (74,299)         

Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities (429,950)       

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest income 14,441           

Cash Provided by Investing Activities 14,441           

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (12,505)         
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 746,891         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 734,386$       

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) (145,961)$     
Adjustments to Operating Income (Loss):

Depreciation 370,435         
Infrastructure abandoned 382,410         

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 85,001           
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments (125,570)       
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources 3,582             
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities (166,651)       
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll and benefits (23,298)         
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenues (2,511)           
Increase (decrease) in refundable deposits 1,791             
Increase (decrease) in pension, OPEB and compensated absences (50,495)         
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources 73,269           

Cash Provided by Operating Activities 402,004$       

CHANGES IN NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL 
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in accounts payable for capital purchases (352,515)$     
Infrastructure abandoned 382,410$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND - ENTERPRISE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Total
ASSETS

Cash and investments 329,146$      
Accounts receivable 1,545            
Due from other governments 111,595        
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 363,924        

Total Assets 806,210$      

LIABILITIES 
Refundable deposits 46$               
Due to others 806,164        

Total Liabilities 806,210$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

AGENCY FUNDS

June 30, 2020

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Ione (the City) was incorporated in 1953, under the laws and regulations of the State of 
California.  The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following 
services:  public safety, highways and streets, sewer, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning 
and zoning, and general administrative services.  The voters of the City give authority and responsibility 
for operations to the City Council.  The City Council has the authority to employ administrative and 
support personnel to carry out its directives.  The primary method used to monitor the performance of the 
City’s management is the financial budget, which is adopted annually by the City Council. 

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting.  On June 15, 
1987, the GASB issued a codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), 
constitutes GAAP for governmental units.  The more significant of these accounting policies are 
described below. 

Reporting Entity 

The City operates as a self-governing local government unit within the state of California.  It has limited 
authority to levy taxes and has the authority to determine user fees for the services that it provides.  
Voters elect a city council that passes laws and determines broad policies.  The council also oversees the 
operations of the City and approves all budgets, fund transfers and fund balance reserves.  The City’s 
main funding sources include property taxes, sales taxes, other inter-governmental revenue from state and 
federal sources, user fees, and federal and state financial assistance. 

The City participates in a number of joint powers authorities in which the City only has a residual equity 
interest in the related entity.  The City is generally not liable for the liabilities of the entities if they 
dissolve.  However, California Assembly Bill (AB) 1912 requires member agencies of a joint powers 
authority that participates in, or contracts with, a public retirement system to mutually agree as to the 
apportionment of the joint power authority’s retirement obligation among themselves prior to filing a 
notice of termination.  AB 1912 could result in the City being held responsible for a portion of a joint 
powers authority’s retirement obligation if the joint powers authority does not have sufficient assets to 
fund the obligation.  The City participates in the following Joint Powers Authorities: The Amador County 
Recreation Agency, Amador County Integrated Solid Waste Management Agency, Amador Fire 
Protection Authority, and Amador Regional Transit System.   

Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements:  The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the 
statement of net position and statement of activities) report information on all nonfiduciary activities of 
the primary government and its component units.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has 
been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a  
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NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

specific function or segment.  Certain indirect costs are included in the program expenses of most 
business-type activities.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services and privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 
2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues.  

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is a separate self-balancing set of 
accounts.  Each fund was established for the purpose of accounting for specific activities in accordance 
with applicable regulations, restrictions or limitations.  Separate financial statements are provided for 
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the last is excluded from the 
government-wide financial statements.  Major individual governmental funds and major individual 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation:  The government-wide financial 
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the proprietary funds financial statements and fiduciary fund statements, with the 
exception of agency funds, which have no measurement focus.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property 
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements are met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this 
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period, with the exception of property taxes.  Property taxes are considered to be available if 
they are collected within 60 days of the current fiscal period. Amounts received after the availability 
period are reported as unavailable revenues.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. 

Major revenues that are determined to be susceptible to accrual include property taxes and assessments, 
sales taxes, franchise taxes, charges for services, intergovernmental revenues, and earnings on 
investments.  Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year end on behalf of the government are also 
recognized as revenue.  Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received 
by the government and are recognized as revenue at that time.  Entitlements and shared revenues 
(government mandated nonexchange transactions) are recognized when the City has satisfied all 
applicable eligibility requirements and if the amounts are measurable.  If the grant funds are received 
before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied, the unearned amounts are reported as unearned 
revenue. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund – The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City.  It accounts for all 
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 
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HOME Program Grant Special Revenue Fund – This fund accounts for low- and moderate-income 
loans made using HOME program grant funds.   

CDBG Program Grant Special Revenue Fund – This fund accounts for providing down payment 
assistance to buyers to expand opportunities to principally for low and moderate-income persons. 

Local Traffic Mitigation Fund – This fund accounts for fees collected by the County and remitted to the 
City on all building permits for single or multi-family residential units and commercial industrial uses to 
be used to finance construction, improvement, and maintenance of public roads. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of 
the City’s enterprise fund are charges to customers or other funds for sales and services.  Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses.   

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

The City reports the following major enterprise fund: 

Sewer Enterprise Fund – This fund accounts for the operation of the City’s sewer utility. Activities of 
this fund includes administration, operation and maintenance of the water and sewer systems and billing 
and collection activities. The Fund also accumulates resources for future expansion. All costs are 
financed through charges made to utility customers and developers with rates reviewed regularly and 
adjusted if necessary to ensure the integrity of the Funds.   

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds – Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources (not including private purpose trusts or major capital projects) that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Capital Projects Funds – The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary 
funds. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Agency Funds – Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a purely custodial 
capacity.  Agency funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary investment and remittance of 
fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations or other governments.  The City’s agency 
funds account for Community Facility Districts used for conduit debt owed by property owners, 
regional traffic mitigation funds and police asset seizure funds.  The regional traffic mitigation funds 
are distributed to the Amador County Transportation Planning Agency for regional traffic mitigation 
activities.  Asset seizure funds are seized by the Police Department and held until the assets are 
forfeited or returned to the owner.   
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Cash and Cash Equivalents:  The City’s cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand 
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less, that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and not subject to significant changes in value from interest rate 
fluctuations, including the City’s investment in California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), money 
market mutual funds and certificates of deposits. 

Allocations of Investment Income Among Funds:  Investment income is allocated to funds required by 
law or administrative action to receive investment income and proprietary funds.  Interest is allocated on a 
monthly basis based on the weighted average cash balances in each fund receiving interest.  

Receivables and Payables:  Sales, use, and utility user taxes related to the current fiscal year are accrued 
as revenue and accounts receivable and considered available if received within 90 days of year end.  
Property taxes related to the current fiscal year are accrued as revenue and accounts receivable and 
considered available if received within 60 days of year-end. Federal and State grants are considered 
receivable and accrued as revenue when reimbursable costs are incurred.  The amount recognized as 
revenue under the modified accrual basis of accounting is limited to the amount that is deemed 
measurable and available.  Unbilled utility revenue earned is recognized as revenue and accounts 
receivable in the enterprise funds when the related service is performed. 

Long-term loans in governmental funds represent low-and-moderate income housing loans under the 
HOME and CDBG programs, as described in Note D.  Loans are recognized as receivables and deferred 
inflows of resources in governmental funds as the loans do not represent current available financial 
resources.  Non-current interest receivable on the loans are also offset with deferred inflows for 
unavailable revenues are they are generally due when the related property is sold and do not represent 
resources available for appropriation. 

Restricted Assets:  Certain proceeds of long-term debt are classified as restricted assets on the balance 
sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.  The “reserve” account is used to report 
resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in the bond’s debt service.  Certain unspent 
debt proceeds are restricted to specific capital projects by the applicable debt covenant.  The City also 
collects impact fees in the Sewer Fund that are restricted for certain capital replacement activities. 

Property Taxes:  The County of Amador (the County) is responsible for the collection and allocation of 
property taxes.  Under California law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the County up to 1% 
of the full cash value of taxable property, plus other increases approved by the voters and distributed in 
accordance with statutory formulas.  The City recognizes property taxes when the individual installments 
are due, provided they are collected within 60 days after year end.  Secured property taxes are levied each 
July 1 on the assessed values as of January 1 of the prior year.  These taxes are paid in two equal 
installments; the first is due November 1 and become delinquent with penalties after December 10; the 
second is due February 1 and become delinquent with penalties after April 10.  Secured property taxes, 
which are delinquent and unpaid as of June 30, are declared to be tax defaulted and are subject to 
redemption penalties, costs and interest when paid.  These taxes are secured by liens on the property 
being taxed. 

The term “unsecured” refers to taxes on personal property other than land and buildings.  Property tax 
revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which they are levied, provided they are due and collected 
within 60 days after fiscal year-end.  Unsecured property taxes are levied each July 1 on the assessed 
values as of January 1 of the prior year.  They become delinquent on August 31.  The County apportions  
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secured property tax revenue in accordance with the alternate methods of distribution, the “Teeter Plan,” 
as prescribed by Section 4717 of the California Revenue and Taxation code.  Therefore, the City receives 
100% of the secured property tax levies to which it is entitled, whether or not collected.  Unsecured 
delinquent taxes are considered fully collectible.  These taxes are accrued as intergovernmental 
receivables only if they are received from the County within 60 days after year end for the governmental 
funds and are accrued when earned for government-wide presentation regardless of the timing of the 
related cash flows. 

Capital Assets:  Capital assets are recorded at historical costs.  Capital assets are not capitalized in 
governmental funds used to acquire or construct them.  Capital acquisitions are reflected as expenditures 
in the governmental fund, and the related assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Contributed capital assets are 
recorded at their acquisition value, which is the price that would be paid to acquire the asset with 
equivalent service potential in an orderly market transaction at the acquisition date. The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not 
included in the current year’s additions to governmental or business-type capital assets.  Capital assets are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Buildings  20-30 years 
Building improvements 10-15 years 
Site improvements 15-20 years 
Equipment and machinery  3-20 years 
Infrastructure  7-50 years 

It is the policy of the City to capitalize all land, building, improvements, equipment, and infrastructure 
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000.  Costs of assets sold or retired and the resulting 
gain or loss is included in the operating statement of the related proprietary fund.  In governmental funds, 
the sale of general capital assets is included in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in 
fund balances as proceeds from sale.  The proceeds reported in the governmental fund are eliminated and 
the gain or loss on sale is reported in the government-wide presentation. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources:  In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of 
financial position reports a separate section for deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources.  
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position by the government that is 
applicable to a future reporting period.  Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net 
position that is applicable to a future reporting period.  These amounts will not be recognized as an 
outflow of resources (expenditure/expense) or an inflow of resources (revenue) until the earnings process 
is complete.  The governmental funds report unavailable revenues for grants, loans receivable, accrued 
interest on loans receivable and other revenues when the amounts meet the asset recognition criteria under 
GASB 33 and were accrued as receivables, but the amounts were not received in the availability period.  
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources include amounts deferred related to the City’s pension plan 
under GASB 68 and the City’s OPEB Plan under GASB 75 as described in Notes H and I. 

Compensated Absences:  It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused 
vacation based on classification and length of service.  Vacation is accrued when incurred in the 
government-wide presentation and in the proprietary funds and reported as a fund liability.  Amounts that 
are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources, for example, as a result of 
employee resignations or retirements that are currently payable, are reported as expenditures and a fund  
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liability of the governmental fund that will pay it.  Amounts not expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources represent a reconciling item between the fund and government-
wide presentation.  No expenditure is reported in the governmental fund financial statements for these 
amounts.   

City employees are granted vacation in varying amounts based on classification and length of service 
from 80 to 192 hours per year and may accumulate a maximum of 240 hours. The City Manager may 
approve vacation buyouts of up to 80 hours every 12-month period.  Upon termination or retirement, the 
City pays 100% of the vacation time accrued.  Sick leave is accrued from 80 to 96 hours per year and is 
capped at 960 hours.  Sick leave is not payable at retirement except for one management employee who 
may elect to have 50% of sick leave hours paid at separation.  The remaining employees may convert the 
sick leave to CalPERS service credit.  General employees may select compensatory time-off to a 
maximum of 40 hours in lieu of overtime, which is included in compensated absences.  Department heads 
are provided 5 days of administrative leave per fiscal year, which is not payable at separation and is not 
accrued as compensated absences. Compensated absences are liquidated by the General Fund and Sewer 
Enterprise Fund. 

Interfund Transactions:  Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current 
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund 
loans).  Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type 
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” Advances 
between funds are reported as nonspendable fund balance in governmental funds to indicate they do not 
constitute resources available for appropriation. 

Unearned Revenues:  Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the City before it has legal 
claim to them (i.e. when cost reimbursement grant revenues are received prior to the incurrence of 
qualifying expenditures) or when exchange revenues are received before the exchange takes place, such 
as unearned developer deposits for permitting and plan checks. 

Long-term Debt: The proceeds of long-term debt of governmental funds are reported at face value (net of 
premium or discount) in the government-wide financial statements as other financing sources and 
represent a reconciling item between the fund and government-wide presentation.  Certain other 
governmental fund obligations not expected to be financed with current available financial resources are 
also reported in the government-wide financial statements and represent a reconciling item between the 
fund and government-wide presentation.  Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary 
funds are reported as liabilities in the related proprietary fund.  Issuance costs, even if withheld from the 
actual net proceeds received, are reported as expenditures/expenses of the governmental or proprietary 
fund. 

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plan: For purposes of measuring the net pension 
liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to the pension plan, and pension expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the Commission’s California Public Employee’s 
Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.  For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 



CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

June 30, 2020 

24 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the plan 
and additions to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis 
as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the plan recognizes benefit payments when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.  The General Fund 
and Sewer Enterprise Fund are used to liquidate the net pension liability and net OPEB liability. 

Fund Balance:  In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance. 

Nonspendable – Fund balance should be reported as nonspendable when the amounts cannot be spent 
because they are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact.  Nonspendable balances are not expected to be converted to cash within the next operating 
cycle, which comprise prepaid items and long-term receivables.  

Restricted – Fund balance should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of 
resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed – Fund balance should be reported as committed when the amounts can only be used for 
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level 
of decision-making authority, the City Council. These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose 
unless the City Council modifies or removes the fund balance commitment.  

Assigned – Fund balance should be reported as assigned when the amounts are constrained by the 
government’s intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed.  

Unassigned – Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification of the City’s funds and includes 
all spendable amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes. 

Net Position:  The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements present net position.  Net 
position is categorized as the net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted. 

Net Investment in Capital Assets – This category groups all capital assets into one component of net 
position.  Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of payables and debt that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this 
category. 

Restricted Net Position – This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  The purpose of each restriction is reported on the 
face of the statement of net position. 

Unrestricted Net Position – This category represents net position of the City not restricted for any 
project or other purpose. 

The City Council establishes, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments by 
passage of a resolution.  When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted, committed, assigned and unassigned  
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resources as they are needed.  The City’s committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are considered to 
have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those 
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.  

Use of Estimates:  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Budgetary Information:  The City Council annually adopts the budget resolution for all operating funds of 
the City.  Budgetary control is legally maintained at the fund level.  Department heads submit budget 
requests to the City Administrator.  The Administrator prepares an estimate of revenues and prepares 
recommendations for the next year’s budget.  The preliminary budget may or may not be amended by the 
City Council and is adopted by resolution by the City Council on or before June 30. 

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying financial statements have been adjusted for legally 
authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year.  Appropriations, except open project 
appropriations, and unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year.  Amounts 
shown in the financial statements represent the original budgeted amounts and all supplemental 
appropriations.  The supplemental appropriations were immaterial.  The budgetary data is prepared on the 
modified accrual basis consistent with the related “actual” amounts.  The City does not use encumbrance 
accounting. 

Excess Expenditures Over Appropriations:  The following funds had excess expenditures and transfers 
out over appropriations:   

Excess Over
 Fund Appropriations

Home Program Grant Special Revenue Fund 18$                 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:  

COPS SLESF AB3229 Special Revenue Fund 2,174           
Restricted Police Special Revenue Fund 28,951          

Fund Balance Deficits:  The General Fund, Safer Grant Special Revenue Fund, Railroad Depot Special 
Revenue Fund, Fire Services Impact Fees Capital Projects Fund and the Governmental Impact Fees 
Capital Projects Fund have fund balance deficits of $253,392, $1,801, $14,574, $1,000,293 and $524,248, 
respectively.   The deficit in the General Fund will be eliminated by future tax and other revenues and/or 
reductions in future expenditures.  The deficits in the Safer Grant Special Revenue Fund and Railroad 
Depot Special Revenue Fund will be eliminated with future grants or transfers from other funds.  The 
deficits in the impact fees funds will be eliminated by the collection of future impact fees. 

New Pronouncements:  In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement 
Obligations.  This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement 
obligations (AROs).  This Statement requires that recognition occur when the liability is both incurred 
and reasonably estimable. The determination of when the liability is incurred should be based on the 
occurrence of external laws, regulations, contracts, or court judgments, together with the occurrence of an 
internal event that obligates a government to perform asset retirement activities.  The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2019. 
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In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities.  This Statement establishes 
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria 
generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the 
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary 
component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.   This Statement 
describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee 
benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds.  
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases.  This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases 
that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of 
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  Under this Statement, a lessee is required to 
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a 
lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.  A lease is defined as a contract that conveys control 
of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time in an 
exchange or exchange-like transaction. Examples of nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, 
and equipment. Any contract that meets this definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, 
unless specifically excluded in this Statement.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 

In April 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct 
Borrowings and Direct Placements. This Statement improves the information that is disclosed in the 
notes to government financial statements and clarifies which liabilities governments should include when 
disclosing information related to debt. This Statement requires that additional essential information 
related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets 
pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of 
default with finance-related consequences and significant subjective acceleration clauses. For notes to the 
financial statement there is a requirement that existing and additional information be provided for direct 
borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt. The requirements of this Statement 
are effective for the reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2019. 

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End 
of a Construction Period.  This Statement enhances disclosures about capital assets and the cost of 
borrowing for a reporting period and simplifies the accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of 
a construction period.  Interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will be recognized as 
an expense rather than being recorded as part of the cost of capital assets in a business-type activity or 
enterprise fund and interest cost incurred by a fund using the current financial resources measurement 
focus before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent 
with governmental fund accounting principles. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. 

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations.  The Statement indicates an 
issuer of a conduit debt obligation should not report a liability for the conduit debt obligation but requires 
an issuer to report a liability associated with an additional commitment or a voluntary commitment to 
support the debt.  Additional commitments by an issuer to support the debt include extending a moral  
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obligation pledge, appropriation pledge or financial guarantee or pledging the issuer’s own property, 
revenue or assets as security for the debt.  Under a voluntary commitment, the issuer does not make an 
additional commitment, but on a voluntary basis decides to make a debt service payment or request an 
appropriation for a debt service payment in the event that the third party is, or will be, unable to do so.  
The Statement also provides criteria for issuers to determine whether they should record assets acquired 
or constructed with proceeds of arrangements identified as leases related to conduit debt obligations. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for the reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. 

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements.  This Statement addresses issues related to public-private and public-
public partnership arrangements (PPPs).  PPPs are arrangements in which a government (the transferor) 
contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by 
conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital 
asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.  This 
statement requires that PPPs that meet the definition of a lease apply guidance in Statement No. 87, 
Leases, as amended, if existing assets of the transferor that are not required to be improved by the 
operator as part of the PPP arrangement are the only underlying PPP assets and the PPP does not meet the 
definition of a service concession arrangement. This Statement provides accounting and financial 
reporting requirements for all other PPPs:  those that either (1) meet the definition of an SCA or (2) are 
not within the scope of Statement No. 87, as amended.  This Statement also provides guidance for 
accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements that include an arrangement in 
which a government compensates an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, 
financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange 
or exchange-like transaction.  This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
2022. 

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements (SBITA).  This Statement 1) defines the term SBITA; 2) establishes that a SBITA results 
in a right-to-use subscription asset – an intangible asset – and a corresponding subscription liability; 3) 
provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation 
costs to a SBITA; and 4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA.  To the extent relevant, the 
standards for SBITA are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.  
This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. 

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.  This 
Statement requires for the purposes of determining whether a primary government is financially 
accountable for a potential component unit, except for a potential component unit that is a defined 
contribution plan, a defined contribution OPEB plan, or an other employee benefit plan (for example, 
certain Section 457 plans, the absence of a governing board should be treated the same as the appointment 
of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the duties that a governing 
board typically would perform.  This Statement also requires that the financial burden criterion in 
paragraph 7 of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, be applicable to only defined benefit pension plans 
and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 
of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, or paragraph 3 of Statement No. 74, 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, respectively.  This  
 



CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

June 30, 2020 

28 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)  

Statement (1) requires that a Section 457 plan be classified as either a pension plan or an other employee 
benefit plan depending on whether the plan meets the definition of a pension plan and (2) clarifies that 
Statement 84, as amended, should be applied to all arrangements organized under IRC Section 457 to 
determine whether those arrangements should be reported as fiduciary activities. 

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences.  This statement requires that 
liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for leave that has not been used that is attributable to 
services already rendered, accumulates and is more likely than not to be used for time off or paid in cash 
or settled through noncash means and leave that has been used but not paid in cash or settled through 
noncash means.  Leave that is more likely than not to be settled through conversion to defined benefit 
postemployment benefits should not be included in the liability for compensated absences. This Statement 
requires that a liability for certain types of compensated absences, including parental leave, military leave 
and jury duty leave, not be recognized until the leave commences.  Certain salary-related payments that 
are directly and incrementally associated with payments for leave also should be included in the 
measurement of the liabilities.  With respect to financial statements prepared using the current financial 
resources measurement focus, this Statement requires that expenditures be recognized for the amount that 
normally would be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.  Governments are allowed to 
disclose the net change in the liability if identified as such in the footnotes to the financial statements.  
The provisions of this Statement are effective for years beginning after December 15, 2023. 

The City is currently analyzing the impact of the required implementation of these new statements. 

NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds.  Cash represents cash on hand, 
demand deposits in the bank and amounts invested in the State of California Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF).  Cash and investments at June 30, 2020 are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Funds Total

Cash and cash equivalents 5,778,039$   734,386$      329,146$      6,841,571$    
Restricted cash and investments -                   -                   363,924        363,924         

5,778,039$   734,386$      693,070$      7,205,495$    
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NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

As of June 30, 2020, the City’s cash and investments consisted of the following: 

Cash on hand 145$            
Deposits in financial institutions 5,654,354    
Investments

California Local Agency Investment Fund 801,354       
Certificates of deposit 159,138       
Money market mutual funds 590,504       

Total investments 1,550,996    

Total cash and investments 7,205,495$  
 

Investment policy:  The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the 
California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also 
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where 
more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk. This table does 
not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of 
debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the 
City investment policy. 

Maximum
Percentage Maximum

Maximum Minimum on Dollar Investment
Maturity Rating of Portfolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury obligations 5 years * N/A None None
U.S. agency securities 5 years * N/A None None
Bankers acceptances 270 days AA 40% 30%
Commercial paper 180 days A1/P1 15% 10%
Commercial paper 31 days A1/P1 40% 10%
Time deposits 3 years * NA None None
Negotiable certificates of deposit 3 years * AA 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year N/A None None
Medium term notes 5 years AA 30% None
Money market mutual funds 5 years AA 15% 10%
Mutual funds 5 years AAA 15% 10%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 5 years N/A None None  

*  Maximum term unless expressly authorized by City Council and within prescribed time frames for the 
approval. 

The City complied with the provisions of California Government Code pertaining to the types of 
investments held, institutions in which deposits were made and security requirements.  The City will 
continue to monitor compliance with applicable statutes pertaining to public deposits and investments. 
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NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Interest Rate Risk:  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the 
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.  The City’s investment in LAIF has an 
average maturity of 191 days. 

12 Months 13 to 24
Investment Type Total or Less Months

LAIF 801,354$        801,354$        -$                   
Certificates of deposit 159,138          56,202            102,936       
Money market mutual fund 590,504          590,504          -                  

Total Investments 1,550,996$     1,448,060$     102,936$        
 

Custodial Credit Risk:  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The California Government 
Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits:  The 
California Governmental Code requires financial institutions to secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated 
under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities 
in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.   

California law also allows financial institutions to secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust 
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.  At June 30, 2020, the 
carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $5,654,354 and the balance in financial institutions was 
$5,953,405  Of the balance in financial institutions, $500,000 was covered by federal depository 
insurance and $5,453,405 was covered by the pledging financial institution with assets held in a common 
pool for the City and other governmental agencies.  

Investment in LAIF:  LAIF was stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.  The LAIF is a 
special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool investments.  
The total fair value amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF was $101,607,078,218, which is 
managed by the State Treasurer.  Of that amount, 3.37% was invested in structured notes and asset-
backed securities.  The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight responsibility for LAIF.  
The Board consists of five members as designated by State Statute.  The fair value of the City’s 
investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the 
City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the 
amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

Credit Risk:  Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issue of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 
the holder of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization as follows: 
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NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Minimum

Investment Type Total Rating AAA Not Rated

LAIF 801,354$       N/A -$                801,354$       
Certificates of deposit 159,138         N/A -                 159,138         
Money market mutual funds 590,504         AA 590,504      -                    

Total Investments 1,550,996$    590,504$    960,492$       

Year End

Rating as of

 

Fair Value Measurements:  The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value 
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets; level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. The City’s investment in LAIF, non-negotiable certificates of deposit and 
money market mutual funds are not subject to fair value measurements or are measured at the net asset 
value of the underlying investments. 

NOTE C – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Current Interfund Balances 

Due From Other Funds Due to Other Funds Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 86,083$       

Total due to/from other funds 86,083$       
 

This balance resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund goods and services are provided 
or reimbursable expenditures occur.  All interfund receivables are expected to be paid back within the 
next fiscal year. 

Long-Term Interfund Advances 

At June 30, 2020, the funds below had made advances which were not expected to be repaid within the 
next year.  The funds with the advance to other funds report nonspendable fund balance to indicate the 
amounts are not available for appropriation. 

Advances to Other Funds Advances From Other Funds Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 662,453$       (a)
Local Traffic Mitigation Fund General Fund 180,000         (b)
Sewer Enterprise Fund General Fund 308,955         (c)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 1,071,390      (d)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 864,804         (e)

3,087,602$    
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NOTE C – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 

(a) The General Fund advanced $375,000 to the Governmental Impact Fees Fund and $287,453 to the 
Fire Services Impact Fees Fund to fund construction and expansion of capital facilities.  A resolution 
adopted on June 2, 2015 indicated reimbursement from the General Plan Impact Fees Fund and Fire 
Impact Fees Fund is expected to be made from future development impact fees. 

(b) On October 2, 2018, $180,000 was advanced from the Local Traffic Mitigation Fund to the General 
Fund to cover a legal settlement.  Currently no repayment schedule has been established to reimburse 
the Traffic Mitigation Fund. 

(c) On June 12, 2014 the Sewer Enterprise Fund advanced $244,800 to the General Fund to be 
reimbursed by the General Fund at such time as the Howard Property Trust redeems sewer connection 
fees credits and/or annexation per the agreement between the City and Howard Property Trust and 
$65,155 of Amador Regional Sanitation Agency Funds were transferred by the Sewer Fund to the 
General Fund to be repaid as funds become available per a resolution adopted June 2, 2015.  As of 
June 30, 2020, $1,000 was paid on the $65,155 advance and the outstanding balance was $64,155. 

(d) Various nonmajor governmental funds advanced $1,071,390 to the General Fund as follows: 

(1) A resolution adopted June 2, 2015 indicated $208,230 was advanced to the General Fund from 
the Gas Tax Fund to cover the structural City’s deficit in the General Fund.  As of June 30, 2020, 
$10,229 was paid on the advance and the outstanding balance was $198,001. 

(2) $563,356 was advanced to the General Fund to cover the City’s structural deficit in the General 
Fund from the Transportation Development Act Fund.  A resolution adopted on December 6, 
2011 indicates the total amount of advanced monies owed to the City’s Transportation 
Development Act Fund will be repaid on a semi-annual basis over the next ten years at an interest 
rate of 1% per annum.  As of June 30, 2020, $32,917 was paid on the advance and the 
outstanding balance was $530,439. 

(3) The Measure M Fund advanced $364,107 to the General Fund to cover the structural deficit in the 
General Fund.  A resolution adopted on December 6, 2011 indicates that total amount of 
advanced monies owed to the Measure M Fund will be repaid on a semi-annual basis over the 
next ten years at an interest rate of 1% per annum.  As of June 30, 2020, $21,157 was paid on the 
advance and the outstanding balance was $342,950. 

(e) Various nonmmajor governmental fund advanced $864,804 to other nonmajor governmental funds as 
follows: 

(1) A resolution adopted June 2, 2015 indicated the Gas Tax Fund advanced $43,000 to 
Governmental Impact Fees Fund to fund a structural deficit the Fund. 

(2) A resolution adopted June 2, 2015 indicated the Impact Police Fund advanced $180,000 to the 
Governmental Impact Fees Fund and $616,804 to the Fire Services Impact Fees Fund to fund fire 
station construction. 

(3) A resolution adopted June 2, 2015 indicated the Impact Fees – General Administration Fund 
advanced $25,000 to Impact Fees Fire Fund to fund fire station construction. 
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NOTE C – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 

Interfund Transfers 

Interfund transfers consisted of transfers of $649,551 within nonmajor governmental funds.  The transfers 
within nonmajor governmental funds were to separate impact fees recorded previously in the Public 
Maintenance District Special Revenue Fund in the past into the Restricted Police Special Revenue Fund 
and Restricted Fire Special Revenue Fund. 

NOTE D – LOANS RECEIVABLE 

At June 30, 2020, the City had the following loans receivable outstanding: 

HOME Program 1,162,689$    
CDBG First Time Home Buyer 397,416        
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 52,761          

Loans, net 1,612,866$    
 

HOME Program 

The City provides loans to qualified first time buyers through the federally funded HOME Program.  
Under this program, principal and interest payments are deferred until the loan is refinanced or title to the 
property changes.  These loans carry a 2% or 3% interest rate with a maturity of 30 years.  

CDBG First Time Home Buyer 

The City administers a First Time Homebuyer Loan Program that provides low interest rate second 
mortgage loans to eligible home buyers to assist in the purchase of a home.  Loans carry interest at 3% or 
are interest free.  Funding is provided through the Community Development Block Grant Program. 

CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program 

The City administers a Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program using the federal Housing and Community 
Development Act funds.  Under this program, residents with incomes below a certain level are eligible to 
receive low interest loans secured by deeds of trust for rehabilitation of their homes.  These loans carry 
interest rates of 2% or 3% and are generally due upon transfer of the home or refinancing. 
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NOTE E – CAPITAL ASSETS 

Governmental capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2019 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2020

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 29,696,609$    -$               -$              -$              29,696,609$    
Construction in progress 9,148              14,517        -                -                23,665            

Total capital assets, 
not being depreciated 29,705,757      14,517        -                -                29,720,274      

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,395,120        -                 -                -                3,395,120        
Site improvements 1,174,798        -                 -                -                1,174,798        
Vehicles and equipment 2,649,813        399,237      (20,335)     -                3,028,715        
Infrastructure 2,959,806        -                 -                -                2,959,806        

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 10,179,537      399,237      (20,335)     -                10,558,439      

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (1,521,216)      (73,089)       -                -                (1,594,305)      
Site improvements (686,431)         (54,626)       -                -                (741,057)         
Vehicles and equipment (2,156,977)      (187,490)     20,335       -                (2,324,132)      
Infrastructure (1,378,880)      (133,706)     -                -                (1,512,586)      

Total accumulated depreciation (5,743,504)      (448,911)     20,335       -                (6,172,080)      
Capital assets being

depreciated, net 4,436,033        (49,674)       -                -                4,386,359        
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 34,141,790$    (35,157)$     -$              -$              34,106,633$    
 

Depreciation expense for governmental capital assets was charged to functions as follows: 

         General governmental 49,980$    
         Public safety 194,494
         Public works 19,888
         Streets 73,696
         Community development 15,685
         Parks 95,168

                    Total governmental activities depreciation expense 448,911$  
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NOTE E – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)  

Business-type capital assets activities for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:  

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2019 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2020

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 3,873,444$      -$                -$                -$                3,873,444$      
Construction in progress 1,872,525        -                  (19,577)       1,852,948        

Total capital assets, 
not being depreciated 5,745,969        -                  -                  (19,577)       5,726,392        

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 1,460,112        -                  -                  -                  1,460,112        
Site improvements 446,396          -                  -                  -                  446,396          
Vehicles and equipment 660,007          45,212        -                  -                  705,219          
Infrastructure 10,881,067      177,519      (382,410)     19,577        10,695,753      

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 13,447,582      222,731      (382,410)     19,577        13,307,480      

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (908,069)         (35,756)       -                  -                  (943,825)         
Site improvements (393,596)         (4,400)         -                  -                  (397,996)         
Vehicles and equipment (551,425)         (20,080)       -                  -                  (571,505)         
Infrastructure (3,077,458)      (310,199)     -                  -                  (3,387,657)      

Total accumulated depreciation (4,930,548)      (370,435)     -                  -                  (5,300,983)      
Capital assets being

depreciated, net 8,517,034        (147,704)     (382,410)     19,577        8,006,497        
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 14,263,003$    (147,704)$   (382,410)$   -$                13,732,889$    
 

The $382,409 retirement of infrastructure represents a payable for sludge removal recorded in 2019 that 
should not have been accrued that was removed in 2020.  It had no effect on the change in net position. 

NOTE F – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 One Year

Governmental Activities:
Note payable 20,076$         (12,343)$      7,733$           7,733$          
Firehouse loan 322,575         (29,713)        292,862         31,062          
Compensated absences 116,080         32,380$      148,460         62,706          
Pension liability 2,494,703      57,103        2,551,806      
OPEB obligation 2,182,061      (895,497)      1,286,564      

Governmental activities
long-term liabilities 5,135,495$    89,483$      (937,553)$    4,287,425$    101,501$      

Business-Type Activities:
I - Bank Installment loan 2,851,039$    (85,430)$      2,765,609$    87,413$        
Compensated absences 8,300             2,039$        10,339           742               
Pension liability 234,835         11,919        246,754         
OPEB obligation 155,444         (64,453)        90,991           

Business-type activities
long-term liabilities 3,249,618$    13,958$      (149,883)$    3,113,693$    88,155$        
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NOTE F – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

Long-term debt of the City’s governmental activities consists of the following as of June 30, 2020: 

Note Payable – Direct Borrowing:  On June 6, 2018 the City received a loan from American River Bank 
in the amount of $55,000 to purchase a commercial lawn mower for City parks, which is secured by the 
lawn mower.  Payments of $1,048 are due quarterly with interest at 5.06% from September 25, 2018 to 
June 25, 2023. On January 1, 2019, the City made an additional principal payment of $25,000 resulting in 
a final payment due on March 25, 2021.    

Firehouse Loan – Direct Borrowing:  On August 28, 2008 the City entered into a loan agreement with 
Calease Public Funding Corporation in the principal amount of $560,000 to partially finance the 
construction of a new firehouse. The loan is payable in monthly instalments of $3,494 through August 28, 
2028 at 3.9%. The City has the option to prepay the loan by paying all payments then due (including 
accrued interest, if any) plus the termination value as stipulated in the agreement.  Upon default, the 
lender may call all payments immediately due and payable. Delinquent payments are subject to a default 
interest rate of the lesser of the highest rate permitted by law or 12%. 

Payments due on the note payable are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total

2021 7,733$        166$            7,899$         

   Totals 7,733$        166$            7,899$         
 

Payments on the Firehouse Loan are due as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total

2021 31,062$      10,870$       41,932$       
2022 32,295        9,637           41,932         
2023 33,577        8,355           41,932         
2024 34,910        7,022           41,932         
2025 36,296        5,635           41,931         

2026-2029 124,722      8,062           132,784       

   Totals 292,862$     49,581$       342,443$     
 

Long-term debt of the City’s business-type activities consists of the following as of June 30, 2020: 

Installment Sale Agreement – Direct Borrowing:  On September 1, 2013, the City entered into an instalment 
sale agreement with the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank to borrow $3,250,000 
for use on the City’s Wastewater Compliance Project.  The agreement is secured by a pledge of the net 
sewer enterprise system revenues.  The agreement requires the net sewer enterprise system revenues to 
equal 110% of the Installment Sale Agreement debt service payments and at least 100% of all debt service 
payments, including subordinate debt.  Principal payments ranging from $76,175 to $148,138 are due yearly 
on August 1 and interest payments ranging from $1,533 to $34,315 are due on February 1 and August 1 
through August 1, 2043 at 2.07%.  Upon default, the lender may call all payments immediately due and 
payable. Delinquent payments are subject to a default interest rate of the lesser of the highest rate 
permitted by law or 12%. 
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NOTE F – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

The following is the amortization schedule for this loan:  

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total

2021 87,413$      56,343$       143,756$     
2022 89,441        54,513         143,954       
2023 91,516        52,640         144,156       
2024 93,639        50,724         144,362       
2025 95,811        48,763         144,574       

2026-2030 513,448      212,773       726,220       
2031-2035 575,836      156,462       732,298       
2036-2040 645,805      93,308         739,113       
2041-2044 572,701      24,050         596,751       

   Totals 2,765,609$  749,575$     3,515,184$  
 

Pledged Revenue:  The City has pledged net sewer enterprise system revenue to repay the $3,250,000 
Installment Sale Agreement through August 1, 2043.  Annual debt service principal and interest payments 
are expected to require less than 90% of net sewer enterprise system revenues.  Total remaining principal 
and interest payments are disclosed in the table above.  Total cash basis principal and interest payments 
made during the year ended June 30, 2020 were $143,562 and net sewer enterprise system revenues were 
$543,940. 

NOTE G – CONDUIT DEBT 

During the year ended June 30, 1990, the City of Ione created two Community Facilities Districts (CFDs) 
that issued conduit debt.  The City Council and management are responsible for the administration of the 
Community Facilities Districts formed under the provisions of Mello-Roos, but the City is not obligated 
to repay the special assessment debt issued by the CFDs.  On August 16, 2006, the CFD No. 2005-1 and 
2005-2IA No. 1 and 2005-2IA No. 2 of the City of Ione 2006 Special Tax Refunding Bonds were issued 
to refund 1989-1 and 1989-2 Bonds.  The 2006 Bonds are payable solely from special tax revenues 
collected by the CFDs.  The City has no direct or implied obligation to repay the conduit debt. 

The amount of the special assessment debt with no City commitment outstanding at June 30, 2020 was as 
follows: 

2018 Special Tax Refunding Bonds (Community Facilities 
District 2005-2, Improvement Area No. 1) 2,575,479$  
2006 Special Tax Refundning Bonds (Community Facilities 
District 2005-2, Improvement Area No.3) 3,655,000    

Total 6,230,479$  
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NOTE H – PENSION PLAN AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS 

A. General Information about the Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s Cost-Sharing 
Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (the Plan or PERFC) administered by the California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  PERFC consists of a miscellaneous risk pool and a 
safety risk pool, which are comprised of the following rate plans: 

 Miscellaneous Rate Plan      
 Miscellaneous Second Tier Rate Plan 
 PEPRA Miscellaneous Rate Plan 
 Safety Rate Plan 
 Safety Second Tier Rate Plan 
 PEPRA Safety Police Rate Plan  

Although one Plan exists, CalPERS provides the information separately for the Miscellaneous and Safety 
Risk Pools and the information is presented separately below where available.  Benefit provisions under 
the Plan are established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports 
that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and 
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov 

Benefits Provided:  CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. 
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 (52 for PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan) with 
statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 5 years of 
service. The death benefit is one of the following: the 1959 Survivor Benefit level 4, or the Optional 
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the 
Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2020, are 
summarized as follows: 

Miscellaneous PEPRA
Miscellaneous Second Tier Miscellaneous

Rate Plan Rate Plan Rate Plan
Prior to August 13, 2011 to On or after

Hire date August 13, 2011 December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula (at full retirement) 2.5% @ 55 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 50 - 63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.7% 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 0.00% 0.00% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 0.00% 8.081% 6.985%  
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NOTE H – PENSION PLAN AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued) 

Safety PEPRA
Safety Second Tier Safety

Rate Plan Rate Plan Rate Plan
Prior to August 13, 2011 to On or after

August 13, 2011 December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013

Benefit formula (at full retirement) 3.0% @ 50 3.0% @ 55 2.7% @ 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 50 - 55 50 - 57
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 3.00% 2.40% to 3.00% 2.00% to 2.70%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00%-9.00% 9.00% 9.50%-12.00%
Required employer contribution rates 13.540%-20.707% 18.928% 10.216%-13.034%  

All rate plans except the PEPRA rate plans are closed to new members that are not already CalPERS 
participants.  All miscellaneous rate plans are combined and reported below as the Miscellaneous Risk 
Pool and all safety rate plans are combined and reported below as the Safety Risk Pool. 

Contributions:  Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the risk 
pools are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each risk 
pool were as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety
Risk Pool Risk Pool Total

Contributions - employer 167,217$     208,743$    375,960$    
 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources  

As of June 30, 2020, the City reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability of each risk pool as follows: 

Proportionate
Share of Net

Pension Liability

Miscellaneous Risk Pool 1,219,970$       
Safety Risk Pool 1,578,590        

Total Net Pension Liability 2,798,560$       

Financial Statement Classification:
Governmental Activities 2,551,806$       
Business-type Activities 246,754           

Total Net Pension Liability 2,798,560$       
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NOTE H – PENSION PLAN AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued) 

The City’s net pension liability for each risk pool is measured as the proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability of each risk pool is measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total 
pension liability for each risk pool used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using standard update procedures. 
The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share 
of contributions to the risk pool relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially determined. The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each risk pool as of 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 from the measurement date as of the previous year-end were as follows: 

Miscellaneous Safety
Risk Pool Risk Pool Total

Proportion - June 30, 2019 0.03061% 0.02686% 0.02833%
Proportion - June 30, 2020 0.03046% 0.02529% 0.02731%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.00015% -0.00157% -0.00102%  

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $547,245 for both risk pools 
combined. At June 30, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to each risk pool and combined from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 375,960$    -$                
Differences between actual and expected experience 187,800      (6,565)         
Changes in assumptions 122,877      (33,249)       
Differences between the employer's contributions

and the employer's proportionate share of contributions 99,329        (2,548)         
Change in employer's proportion 8,604          (154,435)     
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments -                 (43,045)       

Total 794,570$    (239,842)$   

Financial Statement Classification:
Governmental Activities 750,130$    (221,407)$   
Business-type Activities 44,440        (18,435)       

Total 794,570$    (239,842)$   

Total
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NOTE H – PENSION PLAN AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued) 

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date above will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the next fiscal 
year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to the risk pools will be recognized as pension expense over the expected average remaining service life 
of participants of 3.8 years or over 5 years for the net differences between projected and actual earnings 
on plan investments as follows: 

Year Ended
June 30 Total

2021 201,721$    
2022 (46,453)       
2023 14,966        
2024 8,534          

178,768$    
 

Actuarial Assumptions:  The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuations for each risk 
pool was determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2018
Measurement Date June 30, 2019
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Asset Valuation Method Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.50%
Payroll Growth 3.00%
Projected Salary Increase 0.4% to 8.5% Miscellaneous and 0.97% to 17% Safety, 

depending on entry age and service
Investment Rate of Return 7.15%
Mortality Derived using CalPERS membership data for all funds  

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data.  The table includes 15 years of 
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016.  For more details on 
this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic 
data from 1997 to 2905.  All other actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results 
of an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates.  The Experience Study Report can be found on CalPERS’ website under 
Forms and Publications. 

Change of Assumptions:  The demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in accordance 
with the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions in December 2017.  There 
were no changes in the discount rate. 
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NOTE H – PENSION PLAN AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued) 

Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% in the June 30, 
2018 accounting valuation.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that 
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on 
those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be able to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected payments to determine the total pension liability. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows.  Such cash flows were 
developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time 
and as scheduled in all future years.  Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-
60 years) using a building-block approach.  Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and 
long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated.  The expected rate of return was set by 
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for 
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns.  The expected rate of return 
was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above adjusted to account for 
administrative expenses. 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class for each rate plans as of 
the measurement date. The rate of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to 
determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11(b)

Global equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Global fixed income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation sensitive 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.0%

(a)  An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.
(b)  An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.  

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:  The 
following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each risk pool, calculated 
using the discount rate for each risk pool, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate: 
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Miscellaneous Safety
Risk Pool Risk Pool Total

1% Decrease 6.15%
Net Pension Liability 1,722,139$    2,346,724$    4,068,863$    

Current Discount Rate 7.15%
Net Pension Liability 1,219,970$    1,578,590$    2,798,560$    

1% Increase 8.15%
Net Pension Liability 805,464$       948,840$       1,754,304$     

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:  Detailed information about each risk pool’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

C. Payable to the Pension Plan 

There were no significant payables to the Plan at June 30, 2020. 

D. Deferred Compensation Plan 

City employees may defer a portion of their compensation under a City sponsored deferred compensation 
plan created in accordance with the Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457.  Under this plan, 
participants are not taxed on the deferred portion of their compensation until distributed; distributions are 
defined under the plan.  The contribution is made by the participant and the City does not match any 
portion of the contribution.  The City does make contributions to certain management employee deferred 
compensation accounts as authorized under individual employment contracts.  The plan trustee is the 
California Public Retirement System. 

The laws governing deferred compensation plans requires plan assets to be held in trust for the exclusive 
benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries.  Since the assets held under this plan are not the City’s 
property and are not subject to claims by general creditors of the City, they have been excluded from 
these financial statements. 

NOTE I – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

General Information about the OPEB Plan:  The City offers a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan 
(Plan) to eligible employees and their dependents under a City Council Resolution.  Health insurance 
benefits are provided by CalPERS under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act 
(PEMHCA).  The City pays the benefits described in the Plan Description paragraph below.  The City 
also pays the CalPERS administrative fee of .23% of the premium. The City does not offer vision, dental 
or life insurance benefits to retirees.   No publicly available financial statements are available for the Plan. 

In September 2022, the City Council approved participation in the Public Agency Retirement Solutions 
(PARS) Post-Employment Benefits Trust Program, allowing the City to contribute funds to a trust fund 
for OPEB benefits.  

Plan Description:  The City of Ione’s Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan is a multiple employer defined 
benefit healthcare plan administered by CalPERS. CalPERS provides medical insurance benefits only to 
eligible retirees and their eligible dependents. The City approved post-retirement health insurance benefits  
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NOTE I – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

for all of its employees under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). Active 
employees are entitled to receive benefits after required service of five years if they retire from active 
City service. Employees hired prior to July 1, 2019: The City will reimburse the retiree for elected 
coverage (employee only, employee plus one or employee plus family) up to a cap of $1,400 for Police 
Department employees and $1,250 for all other employees.  After the retiree’s death, the City continues to 
cover a percentage of the cost of spousal supplemental or medical premiums that ranges from 50% after 5 
years of services up to 100% after 20 years of service.  Employees hired on or after July 1, 2019:  The 
City will pay the CalPERS statutory minimum, will deduct the balance of premiums from the retiree’s 
retirement payment and does not cover the cost of any spousal supplemental or medical premiums.  The 
CalPERS statutory minimum was $139 for the year ended June 30, 2020.  For employees who retired 
directly from the City prior to July 1, 2019 under CalPERS, the retiree receives a benefit up to a specified 
cap per month towards paying retiree medical premiums.  The cap increased $50 per year under the 
unequal method until 2020 when it reached $1,000. 

Funding Policy:  As of June 30, 2020 the City Council has not adopted a funding policy. The City is on 
the pay as you go basis for paying the OPEB benefits.  No benefits are held in a trust that meets the 
criterial in GASB 75, paragraph 4.  

Employees Covered By Benefit Terms:  At the measurement date of June 30, 2019, the following 
employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive plan members and beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 5
Active plan members 12

Total 17
 

Contributions:  The City Council has the authority to establish and amend contribution requirements of 
the City and employees under its municipal code and employment agreements.  The total City 
contributions, on the pay as you go basis, for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $29,312 plus an implied 
subsidy payment of $6,440 for total contributions of $35,752. 

Net OPEB Liability: The City’s OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB 
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation at July 1, 2019.  
At June 30, 2020 the City reported a net OPEB liability of $1,377,555.  

Actuarial Assumptions:   The total OPEB liability in the actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation date July 1, 2019
Measurement date June 30, 2019
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal cost method
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 3.13%
Salary increases 3.00%
Inflation 3.00%
Age adjustment factor 4.00%
Percent of retirees with spouses 66.6%
Investment rate of return N/A  
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Healthcare trend rate used was as follows:  Pre-Medicare – 5% for 2019-2023, 5.2% for 2024-2069 and 
4% for 2070 and later years; Medicare – 4% for all years.  Pre-retirement mortality was determined using 
RP-2014 Employee Mortality, without projection.  Post-retirement mortality was determined using RP-
2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality, without projection. Actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were 
based on a review of plan experience during the period September 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 

Change in Assumptions:  The discount rate in the July 1, 2019 valuation was changed from 3.62% to 
3.13%. 

Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.13%, which was the 
Fidelity GO AA 20 Years Municipal Index rate. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount 
rate assumed the City’s contributions will continue based upon the current OPEB funding policy.  Based on 
those assumptions, there will be no fiduciary net position available to make future benefit payments. 

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability:  The table below shows the changes in the total OPEB liability, the 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position (i.e. fair value of Plan assets), and the net OPEB liability during the 
measurement period. 

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2019 2,337,505$      -$                    2,337,505$      
Changes in the year:

Service cost 229,483           -                      229,483           
Interest on the OPEB liability 92,023             -                      92,023             
Changes in benefit terms 140,911           -                      140,911           
Difference between expected

and actual experience (1,056,718)       -                      (1,056,718)       
Change in assumptions (315,368)          -                      (315,368)          
Contributions -                      50,281             (50,281)            
Benefit payments (50,281)            (50,281)            -                      
Net changes (959,950)          -                      (959,950)          

Balance at June 30, 2020 1,377,555$      -$                    1,377,555$      

Increase (Decrease)

 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:  The following presents the City’s 
share of the net OPEB liability if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower 
or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.13% 3.13% 4.13%

Net OPEB liability 1,567,622$    1,377,555$    1,219,117$     



CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

June 30, 2020 

46 

NOTE I – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Trend Rates:  The following presents 
the net OPEB liability of the City if it were calculated using health care cost trend rates that are one 
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate: 

Current Healthcare
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

Net OPEB liability 1,270,467$    1,377,555$    1,476,744$     

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB:  For the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of $245,934. OPEB expense represents the 
change in the net OPEB liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the 
deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, and actuarial assumptions or methods. At June 30, 
2020, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Changes in assumptions -$              (372,772)$    
Difference between expected and actual experience -                (905,758)      
City contributions subsequent to measurement date 35,752       -                   

Total 35,752$     (1,278,530)$ 
 

The deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the following fiscal year.  Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized 
as pension expense over the 7.1-year remaining service life of participants as follows: 

Year Ended June 30
2020 (216,103)$    
2021 (216,103)      
2022 (216,103)      
2023 (216,103)      

Thereafter (414,118)      

(1,278,530)$ 
 

Payable to the OPEB Plan:  There were no payables to the OPEB Plan at June 30, 2020. 
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NOTE J – INSURANCE 

The City is a member of the Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) along with twenty 
other northern California cities. The NCCSIF is a joint powers authority (JPA) organized in accordance 
with Article I, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title I of the California Government Fund Programs. The purpose is 
to create a common pool of funds to be used to meet obligations of the parties to provide workers’ 
compensation benefits for their employees and to provide excess liability insurance. The NCCSIF 
provides claims processing administrative services, risk management services and actuarial studies. A 
member from each city governs the NCCSIF. The City Council members do not have significant 
oversight responsibility, since they evenly share all factors of responsibility with the other cities. The City 
does not retain the risk of loss. However, ultimate liability for payment of claims and insurance premiums 
resides with member cities. The NCCSIF is empowered to make supplemental assessments as needed to 
eliminate deficit positions of member cities. If the JPA becomes insolvent, the City is responsible only to 
the extent of any deficiency in its equity balance. 

The NCCSIF establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including 
future claims settlement expenses) that have been reported but not settled, plus estimates of claims that 
have been incurred but not reported. Because actual claims costs depend on various factors, the claims 
liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce 
current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency, and other economic and social factors. 
A provision of inflation is implicit in the calculation of estimated future claims costs. Adjustments to 
claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are made.  

Settlements have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years. There have not been 
any significant reductions in insurance coverage over the prior year. The audited financial statements of 
the JPA are available at the NCCSIF’s office. 

The City’s insurance coverage and the respective coverage providers are as follows: 

Coverage Provider Payment Source

LIABILITY CLAIMS:
$0 - 50,000 Self-insured Banking layer

50,001 - 500,000 Northern California Cities Self-Insurance Fund Shared risk pool
500,001 - $40,000,000 California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority Shared risk pool

PROPERTY CLAIMS (INCLUDING VEHICLE):
$0 - 5,000 Self-insured Banking layer

5,001 - $1,000,000,000 Commercial insurance Shared risk pool

PROPERTY CLAIMS - BOILER AND MACHINERY:
$0 - 2,500 Self-insured Banking layer

2,501 - $100,000,000 Commercial insurance Shared risk pool

FLOOD
$0 - 100,000-250,000 Self-insured Banking layer

250,000 - $10,000,000 Commercial insurance Shared risk pool

WORKERS' COMPENSATION:
$0 - 100,000 Self-insured Banking layer

100,001 - 500,000 Northern California Cities Self-Insurance Fund Shared risk pool
500,001 - $5,000,000 California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Shared risk pool

CYBER
$0 - $3,000,000 Commercial insurance Shared risk pool

Amount
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NOTE K – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Grant Contingency:  The City participates in various federal and state assisted grant programs. These 
programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors.  The amount, if any, of expenditures 
which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City 
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

Legal Contingencies:  The City is party to various claims, legal actions and complaints that arise in the 
normal operation of business.  Management and the City’s legal counsel believe that there are no material 
loss contingencies that would have a material adverse impact on the financial position of the City. 

Golf Course Lease Receivable:  On July 30th, 1990, the City entered into an agreement with Portlock 
International to lease the City owned property for the operation of a public golf course. The term of the 
lease is fifty-five years commencing in June 1994. The rent is due as follows: years 6 to 10 is 1%, years 
11 to 15 is 2%, years 16 to 20 is 3% and years 21 to 55 is 4% of gross revenue from the operation of the 
golf course, clubhouse, pro shop, driving range and other golf course facilities with a minimum annual 
rent of $43,000. Under this agreement the City received $37,000 of lease revenue during the year ended 
June 30, 2020. The agreement also states that lessee will pay the City the greater of $50,000 or 1% of the 
sales price, if the lessee assigns its leasehold interest to a third party. 

Revenue Limitations Imposed by California Proposition 218:  Proposition 218, which was approved by 
the voters in November 1996, regulates the City’s ability to impose, increase, and extend taxes and 
assessments. Any new increase or extended taxes and assessments subject to the provisions of Proposition 
218, requires voter approval before they can be implemented. Additionally, Proposition 218 provides that 
these taxes and assessments are subject to voter initiative and may be rescinded in the future years by the 
voters. 

Sewer Plant Cease-and-Desist Order:  On April 8, 2011, the Central Valley Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (the Board) issued a Cease-and-Desist Order (the “Order”) requiring the City to take 
certain actions to address violations of waste discharge requirements related to operations of the City’s 
wastewater treatment facilities. The Order requires the City to take actions to correct violations in 
accordance with a specified timeframe. If the City fails to meet the requirements of the Order, the Board 
has the authority to impose fines and penalties. No fines or penalties have been assessed under the Order 
through year-end and the City believes it has addressed all violations and is waiting for the Board to 
accept the City’s corrective actions. 

Contract Commitment:  On July 1, 2013, the City entered into an agreement with the PERC Water 
Corporation for the operation and maintenance of the Wastewater Treatment Facility, the Tertiary 
Treatment Facility and the Sewer Collection System owned by the City. The agreement is effective for 
four years and may be extended for three additional two-year periods. The monthly cost for the year 
ended June 30, 2020 was $32,871 and is adjusted annually for inflation. The agreement was extended 
through June 30, 2023 on May 18, 2021 for a total cost of approximately $422,000 per year.   

Solar Energy Power Commitment:  On December 4, 2019, the City approved a solar energy power 
purchase agreement with IW Solar, LLC, to install, finance, own or control and operate a solar energy 
generation facility within the City to provide power to the wastewater plant.  The initial term is 25 years 
with three additional 5-year automatic extensions unless terminated by the City.  Under the agreement the 
City would purchase 100% of the energy output from the solar generation facility for the term of the 
agreement for a fixed rate of $0.1275/kWh.   The City has the option to purchase the solar generation 
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NOTE K – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 

facility from IW Solar, LLC at the 10th, 15th and last year of the initial or extension term anniversary date 
of operation.  The purchase price is the greater of the fair value of the solar generation facility based on an 
independent appraisal or a buyout price equal to 120% of the remaining debt used to finance the solar 
generation facility.  If the City defaults under the agreement, the City is required to pay IW Solar, LLC 
the greater of the termination value specified in the contract plus removal costs or the difference between 
the contract amount expected to be paid by the City under the agreement over the initial term and the 
actual revenues received from the of the system’s output.  The termination value begins at $1.5 million 
and declines to $816,962 in year 25. 

Development Agreements:  The City collects impact fees under development agreements to reimburse the 
City for estimated financial impacts of the development on the City’s police, fire, parks, streets, 
administration and sewer infrastructure.  These fees are restricted for the related activities as reported in 
capital projects funds and the Sewer Fund.  The fees are contractually determined, and it is not certain that 
the fees will be sufficient to make the necessary improvements to the related infrastructure.   

NOTE L – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A member of the City Council is a person in a management position of a local golf course.  The City 
provides tertiary water to the golf course for a contractual rate of $70,000 per year under an agreement 
approved prior to the Council member being hired by the golf course.  The City Council approved a credit 
of these charges of $21,467 in November 2021 due to delivering less water in fiscal 2020 and 2021 than 
in previous fiscal years.  The City also leases land to the golf course as described in Note K.  The Council 
member has recused himself from voting on any transaction affecting the golf course.  

NOTE M – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The City was awarded the following grants subsequent to June 30, 2020: 

 The City was allocated $2,049,648 of American Rescue Plan Act funding from the federal 
government that was received in two installments during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023.   
Eligible uses include responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative 
financial impacts, including assistance to households, small businesses, and nonprofits, or aid to 
impacted industries; responding to workers performing essential work by providing premium pay 
to eligible workers; for the provision of government services to the extent of the reduction in 
revenue; and to make investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure.  The City Council 
approved a spending plan as identified by the Ad Hoc committee during the year ended June 30, 
2022. 

 On July 20, 2021, the City approved a project to maintain and rehabilitate a portion of West 
Marlette Street using Senate Bill 1 (SB-1) Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 funding 
of $156,182 awarded to the City. 

 On September 7, 2021, the City approved $38,200 of awards to local businesses from a $63,000 
Community Development Block Grant program – Coronavirus, Aid Relief, Economic Security 
Act (CDBG-V1) award received by the City. 
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Significant contracts approved subsequent to June 30, 2020 include the following: 

 On May 4, 2021, a contract for the Interim City Manager was approved with compensation of 
$10,000 per month through October 30, 2021.  The Interim City Manager was approved as the 
City Manager in September 2022 under a contract totaling $230,925.  The contract ended in 
February 2023. 

 On October 20, 2021, a contract was approved to repair and install a urethane roof on E.B. Hall 
for $97,000. 

 On December 7, 2021, a contract was approved for engineering design services for the 
Wastewater and Tertiary Treatment Plants Interconnection Piping Project for $113,293. 

 On December 22, 2021 the City purchased a building at 17 East Main Street for $297,000 that 
will allow the expansion of the City Hall. 

 On January 18, 2022, an information technology services agreement was approved for an annual 
amount of $35,016. 

 On June 7, 2022, an agreement was approved for installation and operation of an electric sign 
board with the City receiving 15% of the gross revenues per year. 

 On June 21, 2022, a funding agreement was approved for approximately $175,337 in road 
maintenance projects funds from Senate Bill 1 (SB1). 

 On June 21, 2022, an amendment was approved to the personal service agreement for financial 
consulting in the Finance Department for an amount not to exceed $50,000.  

 On July 5, 2022, an agreement was approved for human resource consulting services for $66,750 
in year one and $56,250 in year two. 

 On August 16, 2022, a contract was approved for a not to exceed amount of $199,800 to assist 
renewing the City’s Wastewater Discharger Requirements permits.  

 On November 1, 2022, a contract was approved for a not to exceed amount of $50,000 for 
groundwater monitoring. 
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BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND

Actual Amounts Variance with
(Budgetary Final Budget

Basis) Positive/
Original Final (See Note A) (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 970,500$      970,500$    1,172,739$    202,239$       
Licenses, fees and permits 265,325 265,325 230,647         (34,678)          
Use of money and property 116,495 116,495 55,868           (60,627)          
Intergovernmental revenues 984,867 984,867 1,023,900      39,033           
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 13,000 13,000 10,888           (2,112)            
Charges for services 188,800 188,800 238,512         49,712           
Other 11,200 11,200 22,567           11,367           

Total Revenues 2,550,187     2,550,187   2,755,121      204,934         

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 615,889 615,889 600,273         15,616           
Public ways and facilities/

transportation 341,451 341,451 569,872         (228,421)        
Public safety 1,033,142 1,033,142 894,184         138,958         
Parks and recreation 363,455        363,455      311,099         52,356           

Capital outlay 122,958 122,958 43,019           79,939           
Debt Service:

Principal 9,790 9,790 12,343           (2,553)            
Interest 47,601 47,601 21,178           26,423           

Total Expenditures 2,534,286     2,534,286   2,451,968      82,318           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 15,901          15,901        303,153         (287,252)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from insurance 900 900 7,231             6,331             
Transfers out (21,800)         (21,800)       -                    (21,800)          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (20,900)         (20,900)       7,231             (15,469)          

Net Change in Fund Balance (4,999)$         (4,999)$       310,384         (302,721)$      

  
Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year (563,776)        
 
Fund Balance (Deficit), End of Year (253,392)$      

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
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Actual Amounts Variance with
(Budgetary Final Budget

Basis) Positive/
Original Final (See Note A) (Negative)

REVENUES
Use of money and property -$                  -$                  1,634$           1,634$           

Total Revenues -                    -                    1,634             1,634             

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:

Interest -                    -                    18                  (18)                
Total Expenditures -                    -                    18                  (18)                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                    -                    1,616             (1,616)            

Net Change in Fund Balance -$                  -$                  1,616             (1,616)$          

  
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 360,786         

Fund Balance, End of Year 362,402$       

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - HOME PROGRAM

GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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Actual Amounts Variance with
(Budgetary Final Budget

Basis) Positive/
Original Final (See Note A) (Negative)

REVENUES
Use of money and property -$                   -$                   161$              161$              

Total Revenues -                     -                     161                161                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                     -                     161                (161)               

Net Change in Fund Balance -$                   -$                   161                (161)$             
  
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 36,669           
 
Fund Balance, End of Year 36,830$         

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - CDBG PROGRAM
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Actual Amounts Variance with
(Budgetary Final Budget

Basis) Positive/
Original Final (See Note A) (Negative)

REVENUES
Impact fees 110,000$       110,000$       65,047$         (44,953)$        
Use of money and property 4,569 4,569 6,016             1,447             

Total Revenues 114,569         114,569         71,063           (43,506)          

EXPENDITURES
Public ways and facilities/ 13,000 13,000 -                    13,000           

transportation                           
Capital outlay 150,000 150,000 -                    150,000         

Total Expenditures 163,000         163,000         -                    163,000         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (48,431)          (48,431)          71,063           (119,494)        

Net Change in Fund Balance (48,431)$        (48,431)$        71,063           (119,494)$      

  
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,300,061      
 
Fund Balance, End of Year 1,371,124$    

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - LOCAL TRAFFIC MITIGATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.02731% 0.02833% 0.02865% 0.03033% 0.03218% 0.03283%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability 2,798,560$    2,729,538$    2,842,254$     2,604,553$     2,271,408$     2,017,127$    
Covered payroll - measurement period 1,025,773$    1,069,246$    1,017,722$     1,007,465$     1,007,814$     790,982$       
Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a

percentage of covered payroll 272.82% 255.28% 279.28% 258.53% 225.38% 255.02%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability  70.03% 68.70% 66.53% 67.14% 70.86% Not available

Notes to Schedule:
7.15% 7.15% 7.15% 7.65% 7.65% 7.50%

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Contractually required contribution - 

(actuarially determined) 375,960$       305,254$       355,084$        324,467$        308,706$        209,467$       
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

determined contributions (375,960)        (305,254)        (355,084)        (324,467)        (308,706)        (209,467)        
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Covered  payroll - fiscal year 1,204,236$    1,025,773$    1,069,246$     1,017,722$     1,007,465$     1,007,814$    
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 31.22% 29.76% 33.21% 31.88% 30.64% 20.78%

Contribution valuation date - June 30 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Reporting measurement date - June 30 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Acruarial method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Inflation 2.625% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75%
Salary increases
Investment rate of return and

discount rate 7.25% 7.375% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Retirement age
Mortality

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 68 was impleemented during the year ended June 30, 2015. No information was available prior to this date. Future
years will be reported prospectively as they become available. 

Market value

Varies by entry age and service

50 to 67 years.  Probabilities of retirement based on most recent CalPERS Experience Study
Most recent CalPERS Experience Study

Level percentage of payroll, closed
Varies by rate plan, but not more than 30 years

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2020

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY (UNAUDITED)

Last 10 Years

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN (UNAUDITED)
Last 10 Years

Entry age normal cost method

Changes in assumptions:  Discount rate changes

Reporting valuation date - June 30
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2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB liability
Service cost 229,483$       403,832$       404,341$       
Interest on the OPEB liability 92,023           76,138           50,970           
Changes in benefit terms 140,911         -                    -                    
Differences between expected and actual experience (1,056,718)     -                    -                    
Changes in assumptions (315,368)        (142,637)        -                    
Benefit payments (50,281)          (56,601)          (53,530)          
Net change in total OPEB liability (959,950)        280,732         401,781         
Total OPEB liability - beginning 2,337,505      2,056,773      1,654,992      
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 1,377,555$    2,337,505$    2,056,773$    

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 50,281$         56,601$         53,530$         
Benefit payments (50,281)          (56,601)          (53,530)          
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning -                    -                    -                    
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) -$                  -$                  -$                  

Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b) 1,377,555$    2,337,505$    2,056,773$    

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Covered-employee payroll - measurement period 1,087,305$    1,017,722$    not available

Net OPEB liability as percentage 
of covered-employee payroll 126.69% 229.68%

Notes to schedule:
Valuation date July 1, 2019 July 1, 2017 July 1, 2016
Measurement period - fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Benefit changes None None None

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was impleemented during the year ended June 30, 2018. No information
was available prior to this date.  Future years will be reported prospectively as they become available. 

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2020

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (UNAUDITED)
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2020 2019 2018

Contractually determined contribution - employer fiscal year  35,752$          50,281$          56,601$          
Contributions in relation to the contractually determined   

contributions  (35,752)          (50,281)          (56,601)          
Contribution deficiency (excess)  -$                    -$                    -$                    

Covered-employee payroll - employer fiscal year  1,067,483$    1,087,305$    1,017,722$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll  16.35% 16.35% 24.28%

Notes to Schedule:  
Valuation date  July 1, 2019 July 1, 2017 July 1, 2016
Measurement period - fiscal year ended  June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:  
Discount rate  3.13% 3.62% 3.13%
Healthcare trend rates  

Pre-Medicare initial  5.00% 5.00% 6.00%
Pre-Medicare ultimate  4.00% 4.00% 5.00%
Medicare  4.00% 4.00% N/A

Salary increases  3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Inflation  3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Age adjustment factor  4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Percent of retirees with spouses  66.6% 66.6% 50.0%
Investment rate of return  N/A N/A N/A

Omitted years:  GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018.  No information was 
available prior to this date.  Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are reported.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2020

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE OPEB PLAN (UNAUDITED)
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COMBINING STATEMENTS AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS



Transportation
Gas Development Safer State Rehab
Tax Act Grant Grant Housing

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS

Cash and investments 376,904$   86,767$     -$               10,123$     50,018$     
Receivables:

Accounts receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Due from other governments 24,202       -                 -                 -                 -                 
Interest receivable - investments -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Interest receivable - loans receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 16,781       
Loans receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 31,715       

Deposits with others 2,331         -                 -                 -                 -                 
Advances to other funds 241,001     530,439     -                 -                 -                 

Total Assets 644,438$   617,206$   -$               10,123$     98,514$     

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities 1,868$       -$               -$               -$               -$               
Accrued payroll and benefits 3,945         -                 -                 -                 -                 
Due to other funds -                 -                 1,801         -                 -                 
Advance from other funds -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total Liabilities 5,813         -                 1,801         -                 -                 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - other receivables 30              -                 -                 -                 -                 
Unavailable revenue - loans interest receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 16,781       
Unavailable revenue - loans principal receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 32,815       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 30              -                 -                 -                 49,596       

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for public safety -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Restricted for community development -                 -                 -                 10,123       48,918       
Restricted for streets and roads 638,595     617,206     -                 -                 -                 
Restricted for capital projects -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Unassigned -                 -                 (1,801)        -                 -                 

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 638,595     617,206     (1,801)        10,123       48,918       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 644,438$   617,206$   -$               10,123$     98,514$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2020

Special Revenue Funds
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Conservation Ione COPS Measure M
Low Income Self Help Fire Break District 1 Railroad Public Safety SLESF  Special 

Housing Housing Assessment COIC Depot Maintenance AB3229  Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund District Fund  Fund

85,054$     157,895$     46,714$     63,356$     -$               2,696$         79,128$     411,379$       

-                 -                   -                 478            -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 36,617           
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 342,950         

85,054$     157,895$     46,714$     63,834$     -$               2,696$         79,128$     790,946$       

-$               -$                 -$               1,626$       1,328$       -$                 -$               5,000$           
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 13,246       -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 1,626         14,574       -                   -                 5,000             

-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     

-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 2,696           79,128       785,946         
85,054       157,895       -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     

-                 -                   46,714       62,208       -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                   -                 -                     
-                 -                   -                 -                 (14,574)      -                   -                 -                     

85,054       157,895       46,714       62,208       (14,574)      2,696           79,128       785,946         

85,054$     157,895$     46,714$     63,834$     -$               2,696$         79,128$     790,946$       

Special Revenue Funds
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Total
Prop 172 Affordable Nonmajor
Sales Tax Restricted Restricted Housing Special

Fire Police Fire Developer Fee Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments 2,760$       758,398$   308,022$   53,363$     2,492,577$    
Receivables:

Accounts receivable -                 1,286         -                 -                 1,764             
Due from other governments -                 2,368         1,182         -                 27,752           
Interest receivable - investments -                 -                 -                 -                 36,617           
Interest receivable - loans receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 16,781           
Loans receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 31,715           

Deposits with others -                 -                 -                 -                 2,331             
Advances to other funds -                 -                 -                 -                 1,114,390      

Total Assets 2,760$       762,052$   309,204$   53,363$     3,723,927$    

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities -$               40,724$     -$               -$               50,546$         
Accrued payroll and benefits -                 -                 -                 -                 3,945             
Due to other funds -                 -                 -                 -                 15,047           
Advance from other funds -                 -                 -                 -                 -                    

Total Liabilities -                 40,724       -                 -                 69,538           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - other receivables -                 -                 -                 -                 30                  
Unavailable revenue - loans interest receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 16,781           
Unavailable revenue - loans principal receivable -                 -                 -                 -                 32,815           

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources -                 -                 -                 -                 49,626           

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for public safety 2,760         721,328     309,204     -                 1,901,062      
Restricted for community development -                 -                 -                 53,363       355,353         
Restricted for streets and roads -                 -                 -                 -                 1,364,723      
Restricted for capital projects -                 -                 -                 -                 -                    
Unassigned -                 -                 -                 -                 (16,375)         

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 2,760         721,328     309,204     53,363       3,604,763      

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 2,760$       762,052$   309,204$   53,363$     3,723,927$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

60



Total
Police Nonmajor Total

Fire Services Services Parks and Governmental Capital Nonmajor
Impact Fees Impact Fees Recreation Impact Fees Drainage Projects Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

-$                  103,961$     715,396$     48,752$       126,140$    994,249$       3,486,826$    

-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    1,764             
-                    27,752           

-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    36,617           
-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    16,781           
-                    -                   21,046         -                   -                 21,046           52,761           
-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    2,331             
-                    796,804       -                   25,000         -                 821,804         1,936,194      

-$                  900,765$     736,442$     73,752$       126,140$    1,837,099$    5,561,026$    

-$                  -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$                  50,546$         
-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    3,945             

71,036          -                   -                   -                   -                 71,036           86,083           
929,257        -                   -                   598,000       -                 1,527,257      1,527,257      

1,000,293     -                   -                   598,000       -                 1,598,293      1,667,831      

-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    30                  
-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    16,781           
-                    -                   21,046         -                   -                 21,046           53,861           
-                    -                   21,046         -                   -                 21,046           70,672           

-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    1,901,062      
-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    355,353         
-                    -                   -                   -                   -                 -                    1,364,723      
-                    900,765       715,396       -                   126,140      1,742,301      1,742,301      

(1,000,293)    -                   -                   (524,248)      -                 (1,524,541)    (1,540,916)     
(1,000,293)    900,765       715,396       (524,248)      126,140      217,760         3,822,523      

-$                  900,765$     736,442$     73,752$       126,140$    1,837,099$    5,561,026$    

Capital Project Funds
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Transportation
 Gas Development Safer State Rehab

Tax Act Grant Grant Housing
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

REVENUES
Taxes -$              -$                  -$               -$               -$               
Impact fees -                -                    -                 -                 -                 
Use of money and property 6,636         13,081           -                 45              221            
Intergovernmental revenues 372,025     -                    19,600       -                 -                 
Fines, forfeitures and penalties -                -                    -                 -                 -                 
Charges for services 560            -                    -                 -                 -                 
Other -                -                    -                 -                 -                 

Total Revenues 379,221     13,081           19,600       45              221            

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public ways and facilities/
transportation 384,380     -                    -                 -                 -                 

Public safety -                -                    15,272       -                 -                 
Parks and recreation -                -                    -                 -                 -                 

Capital outlay 3,154         -                    -                 -                 -                 
Debt service:      

Principal -                -                    -                 -                 -                 
Interest -                -                    2,354         -                 -                 

Total Expenditures 387,534     -                    17,626       -                 -                 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (8,313)       13,081           1,974         45              221            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
  Transfers in -                -                    -                 -                 -                 
  Transfers out -                -                    -                 -                 -                 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                -                    -                 -                 -                 

Net Change in Fund Balances (8,313)       13,081           1,974         45              221            
 
Fund Balances (Deficit), Beginning of Year 646,908     604,125         (3,775)        10,078       48,697       
 
Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year 638,595$   617,206$       (1,801)$      10,123$     48,918$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Special Revenue Funds

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
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Conservation Ione COPS Measure M
Low Income Self Help Fire Break District 1 Railroad Public Safety SLESF Special 

Housing Housing Assessment COIC Depot Maintenance AB3229 Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund District Fund Fund

-$               -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -$                 -$            -$               
-                 -                   -                   -                 -                 -                   -              393,166     

379            704              208               235            -                 2,696           350          9,959         
-                 -                   -                   -                 -                 -                   155,948   -                 
-                 -                   -                   -                 -                 -                   -              -                 
-                 -                   -                   67,422       -                 -                   -              11,794       
-                 -                   -                   -                 -                 -                   -              -                 

379            704              208               67,657       -                 2,696           156,298   414,919     

-                 -                   -                   62,609       -                 -                   -              -                 
-                 -                   -                   -                 -                                     127,017   390,761     
-                 -                   -                   -                 887            -                   -              -                 
-                 -                   -                   -                 14,517       -                   -              -                 

       
-                 -                   -                   -                 -                 -                   -              -                 
-                 -                   -                   -                 23              -                   -              -                 
-                 -                   -                   62,609       15,427       -                   127,017   390,761     

379            704              208               5,048         (15,427)      2,696           29,281     24,158       

-                 -                   -                   -                 -                 -                   -              -                 
-                 -                   -                   -                 -                 (649,551)      -              -                 
-                 -                   -                   -                 -                 (649,551)      -              -                 

379            704              208               5,048         (15,427)      (646,855)      29,281     24,158       
  

84,675       157,191       46,506          57,160       853            649,551       49,847     761,788     

85,054$     157,895$     46,714$        62,208$     (14,574)$    2,696$         79,128$   785,946$   

Special Revenue Funds
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Total
Prop 172 Affordable Nonmajor
Sales Tax Restricted Restricted Housing Special

Fire Police Fire Developer Fee Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

REVENUES
Taxes -$               5,583$       -$               -$                  5,583$           
Impact fees -                 183,276     91,501       -                    667,943         
Use of money and property 12              1,233         1,144         238                37,141           
Intergovernmental revenues -                 1,103         -                 -                    548,676         
Fines, forfeitures and penalties -                 756            -                 -                    756                
Charges for services -                 154,992     7,930         -                    242,698         
Other -                 982            43,760       -                    44,742           

Total Revenues 12              347,925     144,335     238                1,547,539      

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public ways and facilities/
transportation -                 -                 -                 -                    446,989         

Public safety -                 345,183     14,279       -                    892,512         
Parks and recreation -                 -                 -                 -                    887                

Capital outlay -                 58,620       239,444     -                    315,735         
Debt service      

Principal -                 -                 -                 -                    -                    
Interest -                 -                 -                 -                    2,377             

Total Expenditures -                 403,803     253,723     -                    1,658,500      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 12              (55,878)      (109,388)    238                (110,961)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
  Transfers in -                 431,099     218,452     -                    649,551         
  Transfers out -                 -                 -                 -                    (649,551)       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                 431,099     218,452     -                    -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 12              375,221     109,064     238                (110,961)       
 
Fund Balances (Deficit), Beginning of Year 2,748         346,107     200,140     53,125           3,715,724      
 
Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year 2,760$       721,328$   309,204$   53,363$         3,604,763$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Special Revenue Funds

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA
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Total
Police Nonmajor Total

Fire Services Services Parks and Governmental Capital Nonmajor
Impact Fees Impact Fees Recreation Impact Fees Drainage Projects Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

-$                     -$                     -$                     -$                   -$               -$                  5,583$             
28,985             28,985             139,830           19,201           -                 217,001         884,944           

-                       4,129               3,006               577                562            8,274             45,415             
-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    548,676           
-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    756                  
-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    242,698           
-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    44,742             

28,985             33,114             142,836           19,778           562            225,275         1,772,814        

-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    446,989           
-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    892,512           
-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    887                  
-                       55,000             -                       -                     -                 55,000           370,735           

  
29,713             -                       -                       -                     -                 29,713           29,713             
16,422             -                       -                       2,945             -                 19,367           21,744             
46,135             55,000             -                       2,945             -                 104,080         1,762,580        

(17,150)            (21,886)            142,836           16,833           562            121,195         10,234             

-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    649,551           
-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    (649,551)          
-                       -                       -                       -                     -                 -                    -                       

(17,150)            (21,886)            142,836           16,833           562            121,195         10,234             

(983,143)          922,651           572,560           (541,081)        125,578     96,565           3,812,289        

(1,000,293)$     900,765$         715,396$         (524,248)$      126,140$   217,760$       3,822,523$      

Capital Projects Funds
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Community Regional Asset
Facilities Traffic Seizure
Districts Mitigation Police Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments 168,377$     152,261$     8,508$         329,146$     
Accounts receivable 1,545           -                   -                   1,545           
Due from other governments 111,595       -                   -                   111,595       
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 363,924       -                   -                   363,924       

Total Assets 645,441$     152,261$     8,508$         806,210$     

LIABILITIES 
Refundable deposits -$                 -$                 46$              46$              
Due to others 645,441       152,261       8,462           806,164       

Total Liabilities 645,441$     152,261$     8,508$         806,210$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF IONE, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
AGENCY FUNDS

June 30, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and  
Members of the City Council 

City of Ione, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Ione, California (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated May 11, 2023. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control, described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as findings 2020-001 and 2020-002 that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

The City of Ione’s Response to Findings 

The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and responses.  The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
May 11, 2023 
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
MATERIAL WEAKNESSES 

Finding 2020-001  

Condition:  Restatements and a significant number of audit adjustments and closing entries were required 
to report the City’s financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 

Criteria:  Internal controls over financial reporting should exist to ensure the financial statements are 
complete and accurate. 

Cause:  The City implemented a new accounting system and experienced turnover in the Finance Director 
position prior to the start of the audit, which slowed the closing process.  The City’s chart of accounts also 
does not use fund numbers that help identify the fund type, includes stale terminology that makes it 
difficult to classify entries and is missing certain accounts necessary to report financial transactions.  

Effect: Although improvement was noted, 33 audit adjustments and closing entries were required to 
complete the financial statements, which slowed the completion of the audit and resulted in the audit 
taking more time to complete than expected. 

Recommendation:  We recommend the City post all of the audit adjustments provided during the audit, 
reconcile fund balance and net position in each fund to the 2020 financial statements, create a closing 
checklist that includes reconciliations necessary to identify adjustments identified during the audit and use 
the adjustments and suggested changes to the chart of accounts provided to make the chart of accounts 
complete and account names consistent with the financial statements. 

Management’s Response:  The City now has a Finance Manager and Administrative Analyst to share the 
workload.  These positions along with better documentation of the finance system and procedures will 
ensure that audit adjustments and supporting reconciliations are completed prior to the audit. 

Finding 2020-002:   

Condition:  We noted a number of internal control exceptions in our detail testing of financial 
transactions, including the following: 

 Cash Disbursements Tests of Controls – No evidence could be found of management review of 
check registers on the sample of check runs tested. 

 Payroll Disbursements Tests of Controls – No Personnel Action Forms could be found on two 
payroll disbursements selected for testing.  We noted different versions of the Personnel Action 
Forms were being used by different departments.  We noted the City Manager and Finance 
Director payroll disbursements tested had no timesheets.  In addition, no evidence could be found 
of management review of the payroll register/reconciliation of the payroll register to the general 
ledger on the sample of payroll runs tested.  

 The 2018 audit findings indicated the City was over withholding health insurance and in lieu 
payments from employees and a payable for this amount appeared on the balance sheet at June 
20, 2019 and 2020. 
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 We were told that credit card bills were reviewed by the Finance Manager, but no evidence of the 
review was available.  

Criteria:  Internal controls over financial transactions should be in place and documented to ensure 
evidence exists that the control was implemented and operating effectively, and evidence exists that 
duties are separated to limit the possibility or errors and fraud occurring and not being detected by the 
City’s internal controls. 

Cause:  The City did not maintain adequate evidence of the completion of internal controls or did not 
maintain consistent documentation that was easy for new staff to locate to support the controls performed 
over these transactions. 

Effect:  Errors and fraud could occur and not be detected by the City’s internal controls. 

Recommendation:  We recommend the City review the transactions above and maintain consistent 
evidence of the performance of the internal controls.  The City should review employee files to ensure an 
approved and complete Personnel Action Form exists for each employee documenting the approved pay 
rate, step, etc.  Timesheets should be completed by all employees and contract employees with pay that is 
assigned to restricted revenue sources or that are subject to vacation to support vacation used.  Payroll tax 
and withholding payable accounts should be reconciled to the subsequent payment each pay period and 
any differences investigated and cleared.  Documentation of transactions should be maintained in a 
consistent manner that is well labeled and easy to find by City staff.  A transition to high quality, well 
labeled electronic copies of financial records on the City’s server should be the City’s goal to organize 
documentation, which is easier to find in future years. 

Management’s Response:  The City has taken measures to ensure documents including approvals are 
easily retrievable:  a Personnel Action Form is completed, approved, and filed when employee payroll 
changes are made; review and approval processes have been implemented throughout the City which 
document transaction authorizations; paper and electronic files are being reorganized to ensure retention 
of required document. 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

None 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
MATERIAL WEAKNESSES 

Finding 2019-001  

Condition:  Restatements and a significant number of audit adjustments and closing entries were required 
to report the City’s financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). 

Current Status:  This finding was not resolved.  Finding 2020-001 is a continuation of this finding.  
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Finding 2019-002:   

Condition:  We noted a number of internal control exceptions in our detail testing of financial 
transactions, including the following: 

 Cash Receipts Tests of Controls – Several cash receipts selected for testing were charged rates for 
services from a rate schedule that could not be located by City staff and supporting 
documentation for one transaction selected for testing could not be located by City staff.  No 
support existed for the number of fixtures billed to commercial sewer fund accounts. 

 Cash Disbursements Tests of Controls – Three of 25 cash disbursements selected for testing were 
missing checks or other supporting documentation.  Also, no evidence could be found of 
management review of check registers on the sample of check runs tested. 

 Payroll Disbursements Tests of Controls – No Personnel Action Forms could be found on eight of 
25 payroll disbursements selected for testing and five additional Personnel Action Forms selected 
for testing were missing information.  We noted different versions of the Personnel Action Forms 
were being used by different departments.  We noted eight of 25 payroll disbursements tested had 
unsigned timesheets.  In addition, no evidence could be found of management review of the 
payroll register/reconciliation of the payroll register to the general ledger on the sample of payroll 
runs tested.  

 The 2018 audit findings indicated the City was over withholding health insurance and in lieu 
payments from employees and a payable for this amount appeared on the balance sheet at June 
20, 2019. 

Current Status:  Although rate schedules were able to be found for cash receipts tested, this finding was 
not resolved.  Finding 2020-002 is a continuation of this finding.  

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

Finding 2019-003: 

Condition:  A number of issues were noted related to the SAFER grant by the predecessor auditor as 
noted in Finding 2018-06, including the lack of an approved employment agreement for the volunteer 
coordinator, a relative of the volunteer coordinator was approving timesheets of the volunteer coordinator, 
claims were submitted prior to the volunteer coordinator being paid, which may not be allowable under 
the grant agreement, grant receivables were not accrued by the Finance Department, the volunteer 
coordinator was reimbursed for fringe benefits directly from grant funds rather than by the City, and it 
was unclear whether the volunteer coordinator worked over 1,000 hours and was eligible for the City’s 
pension plan with CalPERS and contributions were required to be made to CalPERS for the volunteer 
coordinator. 

Management’s Response:  The referenced Grant Procedure Policy has not yet been established; however, 
will be in the near future and incorporated in the Financial Policy and Procedure Manual.  The City 
Council approved creation of a Grant Coordinator as part of the grant; however, the position was omitted 
from the Salary Range Schedule and is in the process of being incorporated noting that it dates back to the 
time of grant approval. 

Current Status:  The City Council approved a Salary Range Schedule that included the Grant Coordinator 
position in March 2022.  The City Council approved the response to the finding when taking this action.  
This issue is considered resolved.  
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
APPLIED TO APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT TESTING 

To the City Council 
City of Ione, California 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below to the accompanying calculation of the 
Appropriation Limit of the City of Ione (the City) for the year ended June 30, 2020.  The City and the 
League of California Cities (as presented in the publication entitled Agreed-upon Procedures Applied to 
the Appropriations Limitation Prescribed by Article XIII-B of the California Constitution) have agreed to 
and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose to assist 
the City in meeting the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution.  The 
City’s management is responsible for the Appropriations Limit calculation.  This report may not be 
suitable for any other purpose.  The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a 
user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible 
for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures performed and our findings were as follows: 

1. We obtained the City’s calculation of the 2019/2020 appropriations limit and compared the limit and 
annual adjustment factors included in the calculation to the limit and annual adjustment factors that 
were adopted by resolution of the City Council. 

Finding:  No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 

2. We compared the methodology used to determine the cost-of-living adjustment component to Article 
XIIIB which states that the City may annually adjust the component for either the change in 
California per capita personal income or, the percentage change in the City’s assessed valuation 
which is attributable to non-residential new construction.  We recalculated the factor based on the 
above information. 

Finding:  No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 

3. We compared the methodology used to determine the population adjustment component to Article 
XIIIB which states that the City may annually choose to adjust the component for either the change in 
population in the County in which the City is located, or the change in population within the 
unincorporated area of the County in which the City is located.  We recalculated the factor based on 
the above information. 

Finding:  No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 

4. We compared the prior year appropriations limit presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit 
Calculation to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by the City Council for the prior year.
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Finding:  The appropriations limit used for 2018/2019 and 2019/2020, agreed to the amounts 
approved by the City Council.  However, we noted the 2017/2018 appropriations limit was not 
reviewed by the City’s previous auditor and an agreed-upon procedures report was not issued as 
required by Article XIII B, Section 1.5 of the California Constitution. 

Recommendation:  We recommend the City have an agreed-upon procedures report prepared for any 
prior years when a report was not issued as required by the California Constitution. 

5. We recalculated the 2019/2020 appropriations limit by multiplying the product of the two above 
factors by the 2018/2019 appropriations limit. 

Finding:  No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.  

6. We compared the City’s actual revenues to the computed appropriation limit for fiscal year 
2019/2020. 

Finding:  For the 2019/2020 fiscal year, the City’s actual revenues subject to the appropriations limit 
did not exceed the appropriation limit adopted by resolution of the City Council. 

We were engaged by the City to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the AICPA.  We are not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on appropriations limit calculation.  Accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion or conclusion.  No procedures have been performed with respect to the 
determination of the appropriations limit for the base year, as defined by Article XIII-B of the California 
Constitution. 

We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City and should not 
be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the 
procedures for their purposes.  However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not 
limited. 

 

May 11, 2023 

 

 

 
 



APPENDIX A 
 

CITY OF IONE 
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATION 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

APPROPRIATION LIMIT
ADOPTED BY CITY:

Recorded in Final 2019/2020 Budget 4,358,700$   

APPROPRIATION LIMIT
COMPUTATION PER REVIEW:

2018/2019 Appropriation Limit 4,159,674$   

Cost of living factor:
Change in California per capita income 1.0385         

Population Adjustment Factor:
Population change 1.0090         

Auditor computed limitation 4,358,700    

Variance 0$               
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GOVERNANCE LETTER 

To the City Council 
City of Ione 
Ione, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ione, California (the City), for the year 
ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated May 11, 2023.  Professional standards require 
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards 
(and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards), as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our engagement letter to you 
dated February 28, 2019 and to a member of the City Council during the audit.  Professional standards also 
require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.   

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing 
Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated February 28, 2019, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your 
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities. 

As part of our audit, we will consider the internal control of the City.  Such considerations are solely for 
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 
control. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will also perform tests of the City’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions is 
not an objective of our audit. 

Generally accepted accounting principles provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI) to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Our responsibility with respect to management’s discussion and 
analysis, which supplements the basic financial statements, is to apply certain limited procedures in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  However, the RSI will not be audited and, because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance, we will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit involves judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal 
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the 
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nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.  Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, 
(2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the 
entity.  We noted no material weaknesses in internal controls as a result of our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note A to the financial statements.  The City adopted 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, 
including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements.  The implementation of this statement resulted in the 
disclosure that the City’s debt agreements represented direct borrowings from lenders and the disclosure of 
default provisions under the debt agreements in Note F to the financial statements.  The application of 
existing policies were not changed during the year.  We noted no transaction entered into by the City during 
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have 
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statement prepared by management and are based 
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from 
those expected.  The most sensitive estimates affecting the City’s financial statements were determining 
the depreciable lives used for capital assets, the determination of the need for an allowance for uncollectible 
accounts, the determination of qualifying expenses under grant agreements and the determination of net 
pension and OPEB liabilities.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates 
in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  The net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed by CalPERS and net OPEB liability 
was determined by a private actuary. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users.  The most sensitive disclosures in the financial statements were the disclosures about 
advances between funds in Note C, long-term liabilities in Note F, the pension plan in Note H, the OPEB 
plan in Note I, and commitments and contingencies in Note K to the financial statements. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.  However, the number of audit adjustments identified and delays in the City providing audit 
documentation slowed the completion of the audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management.  We posted 34 adjustments and closing entries during the audit, compared to 56 during the 
2019 audit.  The adjustments were mainly cut-off of revenues and expenses, entries to classify amounts for 
reporting purposes, government-wide entries, a true-up of the net investments in capital assets and entries 
provided by staff after the audit began.  
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Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or 
the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our 
audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated May 11, 2023. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors.  However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to 
our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) listed in the table 
of contents, which are RSI that supplements the basic financial statements.  Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did not audit the 
RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the Combining and Individual Fund Schedules, which accompany the 
financial statements but are not RSI.  With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  We compared and reconciled 
the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements 
or to the financial statements themselves. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
May 11, 2023 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

City Council and Management 
City of Ione 
Ione, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ione (the City) 
for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a 
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified.  However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  We consider 
the deficiencies reported as Finding 2020-001 and 2020-002 in the schedule of findings and responses in 
the financial statements to be material weaknesses.  Recommendations on how to address those findings 
are discussed in the schedule of findings and responses in the financial statements.  

We also noted the following items that are included for your consideration: 

Risk Assessment Process   

Considering the staff turnover, we recommend the City develop a risk assessment process where the City’s 
activities are analyzed to determine where fraud risks exist and implement controls to address these risks.  
Some risks may require a consultant to address, such as risks of theft of customer data from the information 
system.  A risk assessment is often reported to a Finance or Audit Committee so Council members assigned 
to this task can devote full attention to financial matters.   

Development Deposits   

The City needs to ensure that as part of the year-end closing process, impact fees for permits issued prior 
to June 30 are recognized as impact fee revenue on developments that do not prepay impact fees. 



To the City Council and Management 
City of Ione, California 

 

Capital Assets 

The City should document the depreciable lives that should be used to depreciate each type of capital asset 
owned and a description of capital versus noncapital expenditures/expenses in its Financial Policies and 
Procedures Handbook. 

The capital asset detail list should be re-sorted to have assets in order of the capital asset footnote with 
subtotals to match the footnote to make it easier to reconcile the capital assets detail list to the financial 
statements.  Separate accumulated depreciation accounts should be added for each depreciable asset type 
to support the footnote. 

Vacation and Sick Leave Payment at Separation 

The City should more clearly document in the Employee Handbook whether sick leave and vacation is fully 
or partially payable at separation.  It was assumed the vacation is payable at separation, which is generally 
the case. 

Other Recommendations 

A number of interfund advance payments were deferred in the past.  It would be inappropriate not to repay 
interfund advances of restricted development fees and other restricted funds timely and with interest.  We 
noted repayment is now budgeted.  We recommend the City ensure it continues to budget repayment of the 
advances. 

We noted a capital fee was discussed in the Sewer Fund rate study that was not approved in the resolution 
approving the current Sewer Fund charges for service rates.  If a capital fee is necessary, it should be 
approved separately when Sewer Rates are approved.  This is typically accomplished by creating a rate 
schedule and attaching the rate schedule to the Council Resolution approving the rates.   

We noted the fiscal year 2022 budget discussed a number of improvements that are intended to be made to 
the budget document in the future.  We also recommend a table be added showing each fund name, fund 
number and a description of the purpose of the fund, including the fund type and purpose of any revenue 
recorded in the fund and whether the revenue is restricted by an external source or committed or assigned 
internally. 

The City established a fund to account for government-wide adjustments for governmental activities as we 
recommended last year.  The City should continue to refine how it records government-wide entries by 
recording restrictions of net position, net investment in capital assets and other items on the trial balance 
we provided during the audit. 

We recommend the City add a direct link to the approved Council meeting minutes on the City’s website 
on the date of the meeting to make it easier to find approved minutes.  Currently minutes are attached to 
the agenda of subsequent Council meetings, which takes time for a user to find. 

We noted as part of our testing that the city has incomplete employee records related to the census data 
provided to CalPERS. We recommend the city update all employee files to include information for census 
data in addition to payroll information. 

*  *  *  *  * 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, and 
others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by any other than these 
specified parties. 

 
May 11, 2023 



 
Agenda Item #I2 

 
DATE: JULY 18, 2023 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: AMY GEDNEY, INTERIM CITY MANAGER 
  
SUBJECT: RESPONSE TO 2022-2023 GRAND JURY REPORT 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Review the Grand Jury Findings and response letter and authorize the Mayor to sign and submit 
the response to the Grand Jury. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this item.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Grand Jury Report 
B. Grand Jury Response  

 



 

 

City of Ione Propane Tank 
 
1 E Main St 
Ione, CA 95640 

Re:  Enclosed Report(s): City of Ione Propane Tank Final Report 

Dear Amy Gedney, 

On behalf of the 2022-2023 Amador County Grand Jury, I am providing to you the City of Ione 
Propane Tank Final Report. 

The report will be released to the public on June 27, 2023. This report is being provided to you in 
advance of its general release pursuant to Penal Code section 933.05, subdivision (f), which provides: 

A grand jury shall provide to the affected agency a copy of the portion of the grand jury 
report relating to that person or entity two working days prior to its public release and 
after the approval of the presiding judge. No officer, agency, department, or 
governing body of a public agency shall disclose any contents of the report prior 
to the public release of the final report. 

It is very important that you comply with this confidentiality requirement. 

The Penal Code also prescribes the obligations of a governing board or elected county official 
with regard to responding to the grand jury's findings and recommendations. Specifically, if the 
report contains one or more recommendations directed to you as an elected county official, or to 
the governing board of which you are a member, you must respond to those recommendations 
and to the supporting findings, as directed in the report. 

The time within which to respond is prescribed by subdivision (c) of Penal Code section 933, 
which states in relevant part: 

No later than 90 days after the grand jury submits a final report on the operations of any 
public agency subject to its reviewing authority, the governing body of the public 
agency shall comment to the presiding judge of the superior court on the findings and 
recommendations pertaining to matters under the control of the governing body, and 
every elected county officer or agency head for which the grand jury has 
responsibility pursuant to Section 914.1 shall comment within 60 days to the 
presiding judge of the superior court, with an information copy sent to the board of 
supervisors, on the findings and recommendations pertaining to matters under the 
control of that county officer or agency head and any agency or agencies which that 
officer or agency head supervises or controls. In any city and county, the mayor shall 
also comment on the findings and recommendations. All such comments and 
reports shall forthwith be submitted to the presiding judge of the superior 
court who impaneled the grand jury.   



 

 

The Penal Code also prescribes the content of your responses. Subdivisions (a) through (c) of 
Penal Code section 933.05 state: 

(a) For purposes of subdivision (b) of Section 933, as to each grand jury finding, the 
responding person or entity shall indicate one of the following: 

(1) The respondent agrees with the finding. 

(2) The respondent disagrees wholly or partially with the finding, in 
which case the response shall specify the portion of the finding that is 
disputed and shall include an explanation of the reasons therefor. 

(b) For purposes of subdivision (b) of Section 933, as to each grand jury recommendation, 
the responding person or entity shall report one of the following: 

(1) The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary 
regarding the implemented action. 

(2) The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be 
implemented in the future, with a time frame for implementation. 

(3) The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and 
the scope and parameters of an analysis or study, and a time frame for 
the matter to be prepared for discussion by the officer or head of the 
agency or department being investigated or reviewed, including the 
governing body of the public agency when applicable. This time frame 
shall not exceed six months from the date of publication of the grand 
jury report. 

 
(4) The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not 

warranted or is not reasonable, with an explanation therefor. 

(c)  However, if a finding or recommendation of the grand jury addresses 
budgetary or personnel matters of a county agency or department headed by 
an elected officer, both the department head and the board of supervisors shall 
respond if requested by the grand jury, but the response to the board of 
supervisors shall address only those budgetary or personnel matters over 
which it has some decision making authority. The response of the elected 
agency or department head shall address all aspects of the findings or 
recommendations affecting his or her agency or department. 

Please be aware that your responses will be a matter of public record and widely read by both 
community members and local media. Therefore, it is important that your responses be as clear and 
specific as possible. A response that is vague, does not provide a clear explanation of any action 
that has or will be taken, or that does not include a specific time frame for implementation, is 
neither helpful nor legally sufficient. Furthermore, if a response does not comply with the 



 

 

applicable provisions of the California Penal Code, you may be directed by the presiding judge to 
provide an amended response.   

 
Please send your response addressed to the Honorable Judge Hermanson, Presiding Judge, 
Amador County Superior Court, 500 Argonaut Lane, Jackson, CA. 95642, with a copy to 
the Grand Jury, within the time period provided in subdivision (c) of Penal Code section 
933 (see above). 
 
The 2022-2023 Amador County Grand Jury's reports, and the responses to them, will be posted 
on the Grand Jury's website https://amadorcourt.org/gi-civil-grandJury.aspx . We would 
appreciate receiving an electronic copy, as well as a signed hard copy, of your response. You 
may E-mail a copy to grandjury@amadorgov.org . 

Thank you for your cooperation in providing a meaningful and timely response. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 

Amador County Civil Grand Jury 2022 - 2023 
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Authority 
 
California Penal Code Section 925a states, “The grand jury may at any time examine the books 
and records of any incorporated city or joint powers agency located in the county. In addition to 
any other investigatory powers granted by this chapter, the grand jury may investigate and report 
upon the operations, accounts, and records of the officers, departments, functions, and the method 
or system of performing the duties of any such city or joint powers agency and make such 
recommendations as it may deem proper and fit.” 
 
Summary  
  
It was brought to the Grand Jury’s attention that a large-capacity propane tank was illegally 
installed at Evalynn Bishop Hall in the City of Ione (City). The tank was removed by the City on 
April 18, 2023, which was during the Grand Jury’s investigation. The purpose of this investigation 
was to determine how the tank was permitted and installed despite a City ordinance that bans large-
capacity propane tanks.  
  
Background  
  
The Grand Jury investigated the December 2020 installation of a large-capacity propane tank 
inside Howard Park, which is located within the City. The propane tank fueled the Generac 
generator that supports Evalynn Bishop Hall during general power outages. However, the City 
adopted an ordinance in 2017 that prohibits the installation of large-capacity propane tanks within 
the City limits. Therefore, the tank was installed illegally.  
  
Methodology  
  
The Grand Jury conducted multiple interviews, including of past and current Ione City Managers, 
Ione City Council Members, Ione Parks and Recreation Commissioners, and City Fire and Public 
Works personnel. Additionally, the Grand Jury reviewed Fire and Municipal Codes, attended 
various City Council and Parks & Recreation meetings, and inspected the park and area facilities.  
  
Discussion  
  
On March 7, 2017, the City of Ione adopted Ordinance 489, which amends Section 5706.2.4.4 of 
the Fire Code to prohibit above-ground propane tanks “within the city limits of Ione” (See 
Appendix A).  
  
The President signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARE) Act 
on March 27, 2020. Per this Act, States were provided funding to help alleviate the COVID-19 
pandemic. The State of California then allocated funds to the counties. From this allocation, the 
Amador County Board of Supervisors awarded the City $100,000 to install a generator at Evalynn 
Bishop Hall (See Appendix B). Amador County Board agreed to reimburse the City for the 
generator on November 4, 2020 (See Appendix B). The Ione City Council approved the agreement 
with the Amador County Board for reimbursement of a backup generator at Evalynn Bishop Hall 
on November 17, 2020 (See Appendix D).   
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To fulfill this agreement, a high-capacity, above-ground propane tank was installed at Howard 
Park near the backup generator for Evalynn Bishop Hall, despite the City ordinance prohibiting 
it.   
  
The project received a proposal from Short Circuit Electric on August 31, 2020. (See Appendix 
C). The proposal was followed by a signed Kamps consumer vapor agreement for a 2-year contract 
on September 16, 2020 (See Appendix I). Project blueprints were signed on September 29, 2020 
(See Appendix H), and the Ione City Council approved the project (See Appendix D).   
  
During this time, the project moved forward with the Electrical Permit, Building Permit, and 
Routing Slip. Although the Condition Comments listed on the City of Ione Electrical Permit #1211, 
dated 11/30/2020, specify that the Fire Department must grant final approval before the Building 
Department’s final authorization, the permit’s status was marked as “APPROVED” without 
evidence of the Fire Department’s approval. (See Appendix F). A permit routing slip exists for the 
propane tank installation; however, it lacks approval signatures from the relevant departments (See 
Appendix G).  
  
Since 2020, there have been more than four interim/full-time City Managers for the City. “Under 
the direction of the City Council, the City Manager serves as the chief executive officer for the 
City, providing leadership and representation for all matters concerning the City government. The 
City Manager's Office leads financial and budget management processes for the City and directs 
the City's efforts to plan for the future” (See Interim city manager, n.d. (link below)). Upon request, 
the Grand Jury found that the City didn’t follow any documented policies and procedures for 
sourcing, executing, and accepting the delivery of this public works project. The City Manager in 
place at the time retired, and it is unclear whether the subsequent City Managers approved this 
project.  
  
The Grand Jury found that various citizens complained about the tank to City employees and City 
Council members, citing safety concerns. The Grand Jury was unable to find any direct response 
to these complaints. At a City Council meeting on February 2, 2021, the City Council recognized 
that the tank was installed illegally and should be removed (See Appendix J), and yet more than 2 
years later, the tank had not been removed.    
  
On April 18, 2023, more than two years after it was installed, the propane tank was removed.  
  
Findings  
  
F1: The propane tank at Howard Park was installed in December of 2020, despite Ione City 
Ordinance 489 prohibiting its installation.  
 
F2: A permit to install the propane tank was issued without all departmental approvals.  
 
F3: Written policies and procedures for overseeing this public works project were not followed, 
which resulted in lack of adherence to state, county, and city regulations.    
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F4: Turnover of the City Manager Position in 2020 contributed to policies and procedures not 
being followed, which contributed to the propane tank installation in violation of the City 
Ordinance. Continued City Manager turnover resulted in further delays in correcting the violation. 
 
F5: The generator can be retrofitted from propane to liquid natural gas.   
   
F6: A secure pipeline can be trenched and connected to the generator from the existing liquid 
natural gas meter.   
  
F7: The propane tank was removed on April 18, 2023, more than two years after it was installed 
(December 2020) and over two years after the City Council acknowledged there was an issue 
(February 2021). 
 
F8: There was inconsistent follow-up from City staff when citizens raised concerns.  
  
Recommendations  
  
R1: The Grand Jury recommends the City follow policies and procedures to ensure public works 
projects comply with state, county, and local laws.  
   
R2: The Grand Jury recommends that any adopted policy and procedure contain a mechanism to 
bring the new City Manager up to date and inform him or her about all ongoing city projects.  
   
R3: The Grand Jury recommends the City establish a system to confirm that projects are completed 
as intended and that they conform to City, County, and State laws and regulations.   
   
R4: The Grand Jury recommends the City connect the generator to the existing natural gas line.  
   
R5: The Grand Jury recommends the City establish procedures to ensure that staff	prioritizes	and 
responds to	reasonable	citizen complaints in a timely manner, including those complaints voiced 
at Council meetings. 
  
Required Responses  
  
Responses to Findings and Recommendations in this report are required by law under California 
Penal Code 933(c).  The Ione City Manager is required to respond no later than 90 days after the 
Grand Jury submits a Final Report.  
 
Address Responses To:  
 
The Presiding Judge-Amador County Superior Court  
500 Argonaut Lane 
Jackson, CA 95642  
 
Amador County Civil Grand Jury  
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P.O. Box 249 
Jackson, CA 95642. 
 
Invited Responses 
 
The Grand Jury invites the Ione City Fire Chief, the Ione City Mayor, and the Ione Building 
Department to respond in hopes that the City comes up with a cohesive plan moving forward. 
 
Bibliography  
  
Interim city manager. Western City Magazine. (n.d.). Retrieved May 7, 2023, from   

https://jobs.westerncity.com/jobs/204547797-interim-city-manager-at-city-of-  
ione#:~:text=Under%20the%20direction%20of%20the%20City%20Council%2C%20the,
the%20City%27s%20efforts%20to%20plan%20for%20the%20future.  
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B – Ione City Council Agenda November 4, 2020  
  
C – Short Circuit Electric Generator Proposal  
  
D – Ione City Council Minutes November 17, 2020  
  
E – Building Permit Application  
  
F – Electrical Permit  
  
G – Permit Plan Routing Slip  
  
H – Blueprints for the Project  
  
I – Kamps Propane Agreement 
 
J – Ione City Council Minutes April 6, 2021  
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Appendix B 
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AGREEMENT REGARDING REIMBURSEMENT OF ELIGIBLE EXPENSES
RELATED TO COVID-19

THIS AGREEMENT REGARDING REIMBURSEMENT OF ELIGIBLE EXPENSES
RELATED TO COVID-19 (this “Agreement”) is entered into as
of , 2020 by and between the COUNTY OF AMADOR, a political
subdivision of the State of California (“County”) and the CITY OF TONE, a municipal
corporation (“City”).

RECITALS

A. On March 27, 2020, the President signed into law the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES” Act), Public Law 116-136. Section
601(a)(l) of the Social Security Act as added by section 5001 of the CARES Act provides
$150 billion to states and other eligible entities for the purpose ofproviding funding to
address unforeseen financial needs and risks created by the COVID- 19 public health
emergency.

B. The County has been allocated approximately $3.8 Million in CARES Act
funding passed through from the State of California.

C. The City was similarly allocated CARES Act funding from the State of
California; however, that funding was insufficient to address all of its impacts caused by
the COVID-l9 health emergency.

D. The County is willing reimburse the City for certain eligible expenditures
related to the COVID-19 public health emergency from the County’s CARES Act funding,
and the City desires to receive the reimbursement from the County pursuant to the terms
and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. RECITALS. The parties acknowledge the truth of the above recitals, which are
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.

2. REIMBURSEMENT OF ELIGIBLE COVID-l9 Expenses. The County agrees to
reimburse the City for up to $100,000 for expenses for the purchase and installation of
an emergency generator at Evalynn Bishop Hall incurred in responding to the COVID
19 public health emergency from the CARES Act fund allocated to the County.
Eligible expenses are describe in more detail on Attachment A, attached and
incorporated by this reference, which describes the reimbursable expenses. The
County is not obligated to reimburse any expenses related to payroll costs, or any
expenses the County, in its sole discretion, determines to be ineligible.



City of Ione Propane Tank 

 11 

3. THE CITY’S OBLIGATIONS. In order to receive reimbursement from the County,
the City shall do all of the following:

a. The City shall submit any reimbursement request(s) to the County no later than
December 18, 2020 as described in more detail in Attachment A, with all of the
necessary backup information described therein.

b. The City shall only seek reimbursement for expenses described on Attachment
A, that meet the criteria of Section 601(d) of the Social Security Act, as added by
section 5001 of the CARES Act, and that have not been reimbursed in whole or part by
any other federal funds.

c. The City shall actively cooperate in any review or audit of the County’s
expenditures of CARES Act funds as it relates to any reimbursement to the City.

d. In the event any reimbursement to the City is determined ineligible for
reimbursement under the CARES Act by any state or federal agency, the City agrees to
hold harmless the County and to repay any disallowed amounts to the County within
90 days of any final determination.

4. TERM. This Agreement shall expire one year from the date of this Agreement, unless
extended in writing by the parties; however the City’s obligations set forth in
subparagraphs c, and d ofparagraph 3, above, shall remain in effect during the
pendency and resolution of any state or federal review or audit, or until the expiration
of any state or federal audit period related to the expenditure of CARES Act funds
related to the COVID-l 9 public health emergency, whichever is later.

5. NOTICES. All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given, by either
party to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given when made in writing and
deposited in the United States Postal Services, certified with return receipt requested,
with postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

To City: NAME
TITLE
ADDRESS
CITY, CA ZIP

To County: Chuck Iley
County Administrative Officer
810 Court Street
Jackson, CA 94642

6. INCORPORATION OF AGREEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS. This Agreement
contains all agreements of the parties with respect to any matter mentioned herein. No
other agreement or understanding pertaining to any such matter shall be effective,
unless in writing signed by the party to be charged.

2
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7. CONSTRUED PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE. The parties hereto
agree that the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed pursuant to the laws of
the State of California and that the venue for any action to enforce provisions of this
Agreement shall be in Amador County.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day
and year first above written.

COUNTY OF AMADOR CITY OF lONE

BY:_________________________ BY:_______________
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: ATTEST:
JENNIFER BURNS, Clerk of the Board of City Clerk
Supervisors

BY:_________________________ BY:_______________

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Office of the County Counsel Counsel for City of lone

BY:________________________ BY:
Gregory Gillott

3
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ATTACHMENT A

Amador County Coronavirus Relief Funding

Amador County will reimburse City of lone for up to $100,000.00 for expenses for the purchase
and installation of an emergency generator at Evalynn Bishop Hall incurred in responding to
COVID-19 from the Coronavirus Relief Funds we’ll be receiving from the State as part of the CAREs
Act. We are not reimbursing for any payroll costs or items that can’t be documented as having
been paid by the agency during the eligible period. Items cannot have been reimbursed by
another grant or similar source.

The CARES Act provides that payments from Coronavirus Relief fund (CRF) may only be used to
cover costs that are

• Are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to
the CCVI 0-19

• Not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020
• Were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020 and ends on December 30,

2020

Eligible Items:
• Personal Protective Equipment
• Costs for acquisition of medical and protective supplies, including sanitizing products in

connection with the COVID-19 public health emergency
• Costs for public safety measures
• Hardware or software costs for developing online or automated processes for work that

previously required in-person visits for employees and customers/citizens
• Costs for carrying out public health orders

What we’ll require for reimbursement:
1) Letter from Agency on letterhead addressed to Chuck Iley, CAO, requesting reimbursement

(total dollar amount) and a brief description of how the item(s) are necessary due to the
CCVI D-19 public health emergency

2) Invoice(s) for purchases (copy of original)
3) Proof of delivery (item has to be delivered by 12/30/20 to be eligible)
4) Proof of payment from agency (copy of cancelled check)
5) Agreement for reimbursement to the county if expenses are disallowed by state (we will

provide template)
6) Reimbursement request must be received by County by 12/18/20

**please contact Karen Scaccianoce, Amador County Budget Director by 9/24/20 with agency’s
contact name and email, description of eligible expense(s), or questions about eligible
expenditures. 209-223-6581 kscaccIan~amadoraov.orcr

Reimbursement requests can be mailed or emailed to
ev~amador~ov.org cc to kscaceianoce(c3mador~zov.or~z

Amador County Administration
810 Court Street
Jackson, CA 95642
Attn: Chuck Iley
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Appendix C 

 

INC. GENERAC
Plymouth, CA 95669
(209) 245-3269
Shortcircuitetectrjcinc.com

August31, 2020

Dear Evalynn Bishop Hall:

Thank you for the opportunity to conduct an in-home survey and review your standby power needs hI Evalynn Bishop Hall
detail. At SHORT CIRCUIT ELECTRIC INC., we strive to provide our customers with the best 600 S Church St
automatic standby solution, and offering Generac automatic standby generators allows us to offer lone, CA 95640
the generator and transfer switch option that meets your unique requirements. As a result, we are H: (209) 790-9200
pleased to offer you this personalized proposal. twaklee@ione’.ca,com

Guardian 150KW LP Aluminum EPA
SCAQMD Proposal

~
~i ~ -~ ~—~ S~ ~4

QTY Generac items

1 Guardian 150KW LPAluminum EPA SCAQMD

1 600 Amp Non-Service Rated 120/240 10 NEMA 3R

2 Wet Cell Battery - 26R
1 Surge Protection Device (SPO) 120/240 VAC Single Split Phase
QTY All labor included

1 All Labor included

QTY All material included

All Material included

QTY CONCRETE PAD

CONCRETE PAD PROVIDED

QTY Conduit - EMT

30 4~Conduit
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QTY Conduit - Liquid Tight -- —

3 1 1/2’ Conduit

QTY GAS LINE BY PROPANE COMPANY

1 GAS LINE BY PROPANE COMPANY

QTY lJquid Cooled - High kW

1 30 Hour Service

QTY PERMiT

1 PERMIT Commercial $300000

QTY Rental Equipment

1 Crane Rental

QTY TRENCHING

15 TRENCHING

QTY TRENCHING FOR PROPANE COMPANY

25 TRENCHING FOR PROPANE COMPANY

QTY Wire

30 350 MCM wire

Sub-Total: $69,386.73
Sales Tax: $4,989.97

Total: $74,376.70
Down Payment: -$1,000.00
Balance Due: $73,376.70
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Generac is the #1 standby generator on the market today. SHORT CIRCUIT ELECTRIC INC. is a factory-authonzed and certified deale, trained in the
proper application, Installation, and service of all Gonorac automatic standby generators, assuring you the highest quality service and support for your
generator.

Thank you for the opportunity to offer a Generac automatic standby generator to protect your home and family during a power outage. We will contact
you to answer any additional questions and finalize the details of the installation of your automatic standby generator. Please feel free to contact us at
(209) 245-3269 at any time.

All quotes are valid ftr 30 days.

Sincerely,

Adler SCE

I accept this proposal and wish to proceed with the purchase and installation of my Generac automatic standby generator.

Customer Name/Signature Date

Dealer Name/Signature Date

You, the buyer may cancel this transaction at any time prior to midnight of the third business day after the date of this transaction. See the attached notice of
cancellation form for an explanation of this right.

Selected payntent option: Cash/check
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Notice of Cancellation

Date of Purchase: _________________________

You may CANCEL this transaction, without any Penalty or Obhgation, within THREE BUSINESS DAYS from the above date.

If you cancel, any property traded in, any payments made by you under the contract or sale, and any negotiable instrument executed by you will be
returned within TEN BUSINESS DAYS following receipt by the seller of your cancellation notice, and any security interest arising out of the transaction
will be cancelled.

If you cancel, you must make available to the seller at your residence, in substantially as good condition as when you received, any goods deivered to
you under this contract or sale, or you may, if you wish, comply with the instructions of the seter regarding the return Shipment of the goods at the
sellers expense and risk.

If you do make the goods available to the seller and the seller does not pick them up within 20 days of the date of your Notice of Cancellation, you may
retain or dispose of the goods without any further obligation. If you fail to make the goods available to the seller, or If you agree to return the goods to
the seller and fail to do so, then you remain liable for performance of all obligations under the contract.

To cancel this transaction, mail or deliver a signed and dated copy of this Cancellation Notice or any other written notice, or send a telegram, to
SHORT CiRCUIT ELECTRIC INC., at P0 Box 38 Plymouth, CA 95669 NOT LATER THAN MIDNIGHT OF

I HEREBY CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION.

(Date)

(Signature)
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CUSTOMER CHECKLIST

GENERAC

Administration Preparation

e Dealer Site Survey
e Dealer Building permit

Installation Preparation

e Dealer Call Electric company

Installation

• Dealer Install base
• Dealer Mount transfer switch
• Contractor Install Fuel Line
. Homeowner Landscaping

Post Install I Activation I Followup

• Dealer Activation
• Dealer Demo a Simulated Outage
• Dealer Fuel Pressure Check
• Dealer Final Inspection



City of Ione Propane Tank 

 19 

~. ~ GENEPACShort Circuit
Electric _____
**********

Terms & Conditions

Short Circuit Electric will do everything in our power to install your generator in a
timely manner. Sometimes schedules are delayed because of issues out of our control;
including gas companies and the permitting process. We will give you an estimated
installation date at the time of signing, but that date may change.

• Concrete, asphalt, or other hard surfaces may be cut to install wiring and/or gas line. If
a cut is made, Short Circuit Electric will backfill with gravel to make the area safe until
it can be repaired. Short Circuit Electric does not make repairs on concrete, asphalt, or
any other hard surfaces. Any repairs needed will be at the expense of the customer.

• Your power will be shut off for approximately 1-4 hours on the day of your installation.
Your installation could range from 1-4 days, depending on the size of the unit you
purchased or problems that are unforeseen during installation. Please make necessary
arrangements prior to the date of your installation.

• Deposits are 10% of the total price or $1000.00, whichever is less. Deposits are non-
refundable, unless your contract is canceled before the 3rd business day after signing
the proposal.

BY SIGNING THE PROPOSAL, YOU ACCEPT AND AGREE TO THESE TERMS & CONDITIONS
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Air Conditioning and Cooling
AC #1
AC #2
AC #3
AC #4
AC #5

Amps
20
20
20
20
20

Volts
460
460

I Phase Calculation
1.732
1.732
1.732
1.732
1.732

Phase
3
3
3
3

Fixed-In-Place Appliances and Motors Amps Votls Phase Calculation Phase
BarFridge 8 115 1 1

Chest freezer 8 115 1 1
Fridge 9.1 115 1 1
Fridge 9.1 115 1 - 1

Parking Lot Lights 20 110 1 1
Photo Cell Lighting 20 110 1 1

460
460
460 3

Square footage (lights & receptacles)
11,600

Max Load (kw) I 116.97 (kw) x 1.25 = 146.21 (kw)

Final Recommendation 150 kw 1
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Appendix D 
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Appendix E 
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Appendix F 
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Appendix G 
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Appendix H 

 



City of Ione Propane Tank 

 33 

Appendix I
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Appendix J 
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 City of Ione 
 1 E. Main Street 
 P.O. Box 398 
 Ione, CA 95640 
 

 

June 26, 2023  
 
The Presiding Judge-Amador County Superior Court  
500 Argonaut Lane  
Jackson, CA 95642 
 
Amador County Civil Grand Jury  
P.O. Box 249 
Jackson, CA 95642 
 
Re: Grand Jury Response – Ione Propane Tank  
 
Dear Madame Foreperson,  
 
Thank you for your investigation into the matter of the Ione Propane Tank located in Charles 
Howard Park. The City of Ione agrees with the conclusion of this investigation.  We will be 
working to implement safeguards for following our own policies and procedures.   
 
Thank you again for your research into this issue.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Amy Gedney  
Interim City Manager  



 
Agenda Item #I3 

 
DATE: JULY 18, 2023 
 
TO: THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: AMY GEDNEY, INTERIM CITY MANAGER 
  
SUBJECT: RESPONSE TO NOTICE OF PREPARATION FOR ACUSD  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Review Draft letter and authorize the Mayor to sign and submit the response to ACUSD.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this item.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2022, the Amador County Unified School District, ACUSD, determined that they were going 
to consolidate schools throughout Amador County.  For Ione, this will result in a relocation of 
the current elementary school to the current junior high school and the current junior high school 
will move to Sutter Creek.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
ACUSD has issued a Notice of Preparation, NOP, Attachment 1.  Staff has prepared a response, 
Attachment 2 for the City Council’s consideration. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. NOP 
2. City Council response to NOP. 
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CITY OF IONE 
1 E. MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX 398 
IONE, CA 95640 
(209) 274-2412 

 

ACUSD Office 
Attn: Jared Critchfield 
217 Rex Avenue 
Jackson, CA 95642 
CEQAcomments@acusd.org 

 

Re: Response to Notice of Preparation- School Closure/Consolidation Program Project 
 
Dear Mr. Critchfield: 

This is in response to the Notice of Preparation for the School Closure/Consolidation 
Program Project (“Project”) issued by the District as Lead Agency under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). As you are aware, the City of Ione and the greater 
community of Ione will be significantly affected by this Project.  

First, it is our understanding that the Project used population numbers from 2013 when making 
their 2022 decision. We believe that the EIR should consider updated population numbers that 
more adequately address the actual population figures. Since 2020, Ione has experienced a 9% 
change in growth. 

The City of Ione is insistent on ensuring that the public safety needs are met and that the 
consolidation plan as presented mitigates all traffic, public safety and sewer service issues.  To 
that end, we hope ACUSD shares our concerns to ensure that potential risk factors are mitigated 
and the Project results limited negative impacts to our community. As a result, we would refer 
you to our General Plan which lays out our vision for our community as well as our Circulation 
plan. 

To assist in your review, and as a responsible agency for purposes of CEQA, the City of Ione has 
identified potential impacts regarding traffic, public safety, and sewer which should be 
considered in the EIR.  

Traffic Impacts: 

• Traffic impacts will include increased congestion during drop off and pick up, which 
increase air pollution from idling and reroute other traffic to longer, alternative routes, 
increasing vehicles miles traveled (VMT). As a result, An access and circulation plan 
will be required to show how staff, parents, and students access the Ione Junior High 
School campus. This is a critical issue as there are existing deficiencies in the current 
access, resulting in long queues, vehicle stacking, and impacts to residents and public 
safety access.  
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• Existing and Proposed Drop-off and Pick-up plan areas must be identified to demonstrate 

how the additional students will be accommodated without impacting public safety and 
circulation on public streets. These plans should include both internal circulation and 
accommodation of additional traffic on public streets to prevent or minimize blockage of 
public streets. 

 
• A Traffic Control Plan for pick-up and drop-off must be presented to address peak hour 

use.  
 

• The bell schedule for classes should accompany the traffic control plan submittals. 
This includes all schedules for ingress/egress from the campus by students and 
parents.  

o The streets in the area are narrow and were designed 70 plus years ago, thus 
not designed for bus traffic, and the proposed turn around will not comply 
with the fire code on Sacramento St. 

 

Public Safety Impacts:  

• An internal circulation plan that contemplates emergency circumstances. 

• The school’s current enrollment is 339, and the proposed enrollment at the elementary 
site will increase to 649. A traffic study needs to be conducted to see what the impact of 
the added enrollment will impact public safety.  The school is in a dense residential area 
on older streets in Ione. During the 2022-2023 school year, the school experienced 
ongoing traffic issues and attempted to mitigate the problems by routing the school 
buses differently.  This was a disaster.  South California Street was never designed to 
accommodate school buses. 

• The existing roadways are currently impacted during peak hour school access times and 
cannot safely accommodate additional traffic without impacting public safety response. 
There is also the impact to nearby residents and the traveling public, as the streets that 
front the Junior High School were not designed for the additional peak hour traffic that 
this project would create.  Traffic control plans outlined above are required in order to 
analyze the impacts of the school expansion on the public streets to ensure that public 
safety access can be met for both the site and surrounding area served by the public 
streets.  

• Please provide mitigation for impacts to pedestrian routes for students in the interplay 
with safe streets.  

• The plan does not take into consideration safety near the adjacent railroad line and the 
industrial facility next door to a primary school.  The uses are incompatible. 
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 The proposed parking is not owned by the school district, it is UP-Rail 
road and there are plans to reopen the rail yard which will cause train 
cars in the area and truck traffic. 

 
o Security Fencing will need to be completely redone to assure primary school 

safety, and a completely closed campus. 
 

 There is an open water pond at the west end of the campus, on private 
property accessible to the students. 

 

• Busses: how many more buses there will be?  Busses affect the surface streets around 
the school and the state highway coming into the City.  

o The added traffic will also create a burden on the City of Ione for maintenance 
of the city streets used for travel to the school.  

o Public safety personnel must be able to access the school efficiently and 
timely.   

o With only two ways in and out of the school, the added traffic will cause 
issues during drop-off and pickup, making it difficult for emergency personnel 
to access the school. 

 
Emergency Response Time and Access 

• Please provide an emergency access plan.  The surface streets leading into the school 
are not set up or designed for the increased traffic flow caused by the elementary 
school-aged parent drop off or pick up, the arteries in that area are already on over 
load with the residential impact of the community, which are used as emergency 
evacuation zones for the south west side of town.  The added impact will cause a log 
jam in the traffic flow and reduced response time during an emergency evacuation 
and the narrow streets leading into this campus, in the event of an emergency or a 
mass casualty incident, will not be passable in the event of parents rushing to the 
incident. 

 
o Wild Land Interface- The south and west areas of the school have a direct 

threat from the Wild land Urban Interface (WUI)  
 
 Fire Evacuations routes for the small children in this campus is not 

safe and will case a logistical and control issue, this campus is not 
designed for primary students. 
 

 The upcountry schools are in a High to extreme fire hazard threat zone 
and evacuations concerns have not been addressed on those locations, 
the Ione Schools are in a moderate zone and need to be given a much 
higher rating to remain open, due to the reduced hazard threat in 
comparison.  
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Sewer Impacts: 

• The capacity of existing sewer facilities may not be adequate for the proposed use. 
An updated sewer study should be provided which shows the impacts of the 
additional flows on the existing system. 

Please continue to keep us informed as the EIR is developed. We DID NOT receive the NOTICE 
of PREPARATION directly but would like to receive any and all notices in the future.  The City 
of Ione looks forward to working with the District to ensure that all impacts are adequately 
studied and reasonable and effective mitigation measures are implemented to reduce any impacts 
from the Project to less than significant. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Stacy Rhoades 

Mayor 


	7-18-23 Agenda
	A. ROLL CALL
	B. CLOSED SESSION:
	6:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS


	F1. June_Fire Dept Report
	F2.June_Police Dept Report
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	1. Receive and file Ione Police Department 2023 June Report.
	FISCAL IMPACT:
	There is no fiscal impact associated with this item.
	BACKGROUND:
	This monthly report is for the month of June 2023. This report is designed to give you an understanding of the day-to-day operations of the Ione Police Department and staff for June of 2023.
	ATTACHMENTS:
	Summary – 2023 June Report

	F3. Administrative June 2023 monthly report
	To provide information regarding the activities of the Administration Department for the month of June 2023
	Wastewater Issues:
	 June 9- staff, along with Councilmember Wratten and Mayor Rhoades, met with ARSA staff, RWQCB staff and the attorney for CDCR was there. We discussed compliance issues.
	 The RFP for wastewater was issued May 31, staff provided a tour of the wwtp on June 7, and RFPs were submitted June 15th. Interviews were held June 19th.  Council approval of a contract was June 27th.
	o Onboarding with the new wastewater treatment plant operator has gone well. We are still awaiting the arrival of the chlorine tank which was supposed to have shipped June 30 and is now scheduled to be shipped July 18th.
	Parks:
	 Staff has met with the Amador Central Railroad group to get that agreement in place and move forward with getting the train depot repaired.
	 Staff is working on a pro forma for parks costs.
	Agendas:
	 Prepared:
	o Three City Council, one Planning Commission, and one Parks and Recreation Commission agendas and one Ad Hoc Budget Committee agenda.
	Human Resources:
	 Retirement processed for one employee.
	 Hired new Finance Manager.
	 Managed one (1) Workers Compensation claim.
	 Posted advertisement for Public Works Superintendent position.
	 Employee development: All employees have completed their sexual harassment training.
	 Two performance reviews were completed.
	Finance:
	Accounts Receivables:
	 Fourteen (14) building permits were issued in June 2023.
	 2,209 active sewer service customers and 496 are auto pay.
	Accounts Payables:
	 Forty-eight (48) warrants were issued in the amount of $229,032.77.
	Audit:
	 Kicked off 2020-2021 audit with auditor.
	Training:
	 Caselle Financial Software training for Finance Manager
	CDBG:
	 Two calls with HCD representative regarding CDBG closure process and re-interviewed loan recipients on how awarded loans were utilized.

	F4. PW June 2023 monthly report
	F5. Building Dept June 2023 mouthly report
	G1. Warrants Staff Report
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	Staff recommends that the council review and approve the attached report for payment totaling $357,299.59.
	FISCAL IMPACT:
	$357,299.59
	BACKGROUND:
	Due to changes in the Finance Department, the warrants include past due invoices from prior months.
	DISCUSSION:
	ATTACHMENTS:
	Warrant list dated 7-18-23

	G1A. Warrant List 7-18-23
	G2. 6-6-23 Minutes
	G2A. 6-20-23 Minutes
	G3. Appointment to Planning Commission Staff Report.
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	By motion, confirm Mayor Rhoades recommendation to appoint Karen Huss to the Planning Commission. Appointment will expire October, 2024.
	FISCAL IMPACT:
	Planning Commissioners receive $10.00 per meeting attended.
	BACKGROUND:
	According to the Ione Municipal Code, Chapter 2.17.030, the Mayor shall appoint members of the Planning Commission, with the approval of the City Council to serve four year terms.
	DISCUSSION:
	ATTACHMENTS:
	A. Letter and resume from Karen Huss

	G3A. Karen Huss Resume
	I1. Audit Staff Report
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	Accept the 2019-2020 Audit.
	FISCAL IMPACT:
	BACKGROUND:
	The 2019-2020 Audit was presented at your June 20th meeting. At that time the Council asked for more time to review.  Our auditor will be present to ask additional questions.
	DISCUSSION:
	The audit provides an independent overview of the City’s financial position as well as its policies and practices relating to the City’s finances.  There are a number of findings noted in the report that staff is working to correct.
	ATTACHMENTS:
	A. 2019 -2020 audit
	B. App Limit Report 2020
	C. Governance Letter
	D. Management Letter

	I1A. City of Ione AFS 2020
	I1B. City of Ione App Limit Report 2020
	I1C. Governance Letter
	I1D. City of Ione Management Letter 2020
	I2. Grand Jury Response SR
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	Review the Grand Jury Findings and response letter and authorize the Mayor to sign and submit the response to the Grand Jury.
	FISCAL IMPACT:
	There is no fiscal impact associated with this item.
	BACKGROUND:
	DISCUSSION:
	ATTACHMENTS:
	A. Grand Jury Report
	B. Grand Jury Response

	I2A. Grand jury report
	I2B. Grand Jury Reponse
	I3. NOP Staff Report
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	Review Draft letter and authorize the Mayor to sign and submit the response to ACUSD.
	FISCAL IMPACT:
	There is no fiscal impact associated with this item.
	BACKGROUND:
	In 2022, the Amador County Unified School District, ACUSD, determined that they were going to consolidate schools throughout Amador County.  For Ione, this will result in a relocation of the current elementary school to the current junior high school ...
	DISCUSSION:
	ACUSD has issued a Notice of Preparation, NOP, Attachment 1.  Staff has prepared a response, Attachment 2 for the City Council’s consideration.
	ATTACHMENTS:
	1. NOP
	2. City Council response to NOP.

	I3A. ACUSD_Notice of Preparation
	I3B. Response to ACUSD-Draft-



